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Overview
The Group recorded a loss for the year ended 31st December, 2018
primarily arising from its investments in equities.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to the owners of the
Company in the amount of approximately HK$43.6 million (2017:
profit of approximately HK$166.7 million) for the year ended 31st
December, 2018, comprising loss of approximately HK$42.1 million
from equity related investments (2017: profit of approximately
HK$171.8 million) and profit contribution of approximately HK$20.6
million from bond investments (2017: approximately HK$20.5
million).

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group's net assets attributable
to the owners of the Company decreased by 3.4% (after taking
into account the dividend payment of HK$205.6 million) to
approximately HK$1.09 billion. In comparison, the Hang Seng Index
and the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index dropped by 13.6% and
by 13.5% respectively during 2018.

Investment Review
As at 31st December, 2018, the Group’s major investments were as
follows:

Listed Equities
TR

Fixed Income

HK$464.0 million of a portfolio of listed shares in 18 companies

ISR AR Z ERMmEK 2 — AR EHAE - EEE464,000,000/8 7T

HK$102.9 million of fixed income instruments issued and/or guaranteed by an overseas

government and five companies listed in Hong Kong and overseas

BT e
/102,900,000 7T

Investment Funds

REES

Sub-participation in Unlisted Investment

RIFLTIRE Z MBS H

Direct Investments in Unlisted Equities

RIELETERAZ HERIRE

H—ESINRFRARES LS LT AREITR SERZECKSSHTE - BE
HK$118.6 million in seven investment funds
+EREES - B{E/A118,600,00087T

Sub-participation of HK$39.0 million in an unlisted investment

—HERFLTREZHESHE -

{818/339,000,0007 7T

HK$10.5 million in two direct investments in unlisted equities

ZIEHNIEETMRAZ EEIRE - (B(EA10,500,000% 7T
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Investment Review (continued)
The Group's portfolio of investments comprised mainly securities in
Hong Kong, United States and Malaysia.

The value of the Group's equity investments declined following the
global equity market trend in 2018 while the Group’s fixed income
investments still managed to maintain a steady contribution during
the year.

The five most profitable investments in our securities portfolio during
the year were KWG Group Holdings Limited (property developer),
PC Partner Group Limited (electronics and personal computer parts
manufacturer), China Education Group Holdings Limited (provision
of private higher education service), Grand Ming Group Holdings
Limited (building construction, property leasing and property
development) and Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited (wind
power and solar power generation).

The five biggest losses in our securities portfolio during the year
were AAC Technologies Holdings Inc. (miniaturized acoustic
components manufacturer), New China Life Insurance Company
Limited (life insurance services and products provider), Yangtze
Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (optical fiber
preforms, optical fibers and optical fiber cables manufacturer), New
Oriental Education & Technology Group Inc. (provision of private
educational services in China) and China Unicom (Hong Kong)
Limited (provision of telecommunications services).

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, an indirect subsidiary
of the Group, disposed of its entire interest in an associate, Learning
Ark Holdings Limited, for cash proceeds of HK$17.6 million and
recorded a reversal of impairment loss on interest in an associate of
approximately HK$15.4 million in 2018.

Significant Investments Held and Prospects

Details of the value performance and prospects of significant
investments held by the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the Chairman’s Statement
on page 5 of this Annual Report respectively.

Dividend

The board of Directors of the Company proposes to preserve cash
for investment activities and does not recommend any dividend for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017: interim dividend of
HK$0.05 per share (in lieu of a final dividend)).
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Closure of Register of Members

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 21st May, 2019 (the “AGM"). The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
16th May, 2019 to Tuesday, 21st May, 2019, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15th May,
2019.

Prospects, Investment Basis and Strategy

We are research based, company focused and without sector
preference. Our approach has been to identify securities that are
undervalued, and offer prospects of improvement over the medium
to long term. The relatively modest size of our company allows us
to take advantage of investing in smaller companies with relatively
lower turnover. Our bond portfolio is designed to offer a buffer to
counter the volatility of our equities investment, but had from time
to time proved to be an important profit contributor.

2018 was unkind to the markets. Investors have been worried about
interest rate hikes in the United States, a deleveraging China and the
trade war between United States and China. At the time of writing,
Hang Seng Index has recovered by 13.4% this year. The Federal
Reserve of the United States explicitly said that it will be patient
in further raising interest rates in 2019. China has shelved the
deleveraging campaign and has been marginally loosening monetary
conditions and implementing fiscal policy to support the economy.
Moreover, there are signs that the United States is not as hawkish
as expected in the trade war, lest it will hurt its economy and
stock market. These developments have led to optimism returning
in the capital market. However, we remain cautious. The China
government is still reluctant to adopt a sufficiently dovish monetary
policy (that is, cutting benchmark interest rate and increasing
total credit growth rate), given the constraint that the Renminbi
depreciation expectation is still strong. The successive interest rate
hike by the Federal Reserve in the past three years has provided a
support for the United States dollar, which will in turn depress the
risk appetite. We will keep monitoring the economic data and policy
tones of the United States and China to assess the appropriate
timing of adding risk assets.

The Group will consider to dispose of its investments held in
accordance with the abovementioned basis and strategy.
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Financial Resources, Liquidity and Gearing Ratio

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$387.1 million (2017: approximately
HK$464.2 million), investments of approximately HK$735.0 million
(2017: approximately HK$895.6 million) and no bank borrowings
as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017. The liquidity position of the
Group enables us to respond to further investment opportunities
that are expected to generate better returns for the Shareholders.
The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated by reference to the ratio
of total borrowings to total equity attributable to the owners
of the Company as at 31st December, 2018, was 0% (2017: 0%).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

As at 31st December, 2018, the majority of the Group's investments
were either denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States
dollars. Exposure to foreign currency exchange rates arises out of
the Group’s overseas investments and cash balances, including
Renminbi, Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht and Japanese yen. The Group
at present does not have any contracts to hedge against its foreign
exchange risks. Should the Group consider that its exposure to
foreign currency risk justifies hedging, the Group may use forward
or hedging contracts to reduce the risks.

Guarantee

As at 31st December, 2018, the Company has given guarantee to a
financial institution to secure banking facilities available to a wholly-
owned subsidiary in the amount not exceeding HK$40.0 million
(2017: HK$40.0 million).

Staff Costs

The Group's total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$3.3 million (2017: approximately HK$4.4 million).

Pledge of Assets
As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had no assets under pledge.

Employees

The total number of staff of the Group, including Directors, at
31st December, 2018 was 6 (at 31st December, 2017: 6). The
remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure that all employees,
including Directors, are sufficiently compensated for their efforts
and time dedicated to the Group and remuneration offered is
appropriate for their duties and in line with market practice. No
Director, or any of his associates, or executive is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

Warren Lee Wa Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2019
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The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit
their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2018.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Group during the year include the
investments in listed and unlisted financial instruments.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using financial
key performance indicators and an indication of likely future
development in the Group's business as well as environmental
policies and performance, as required by Schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong), is
shown in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 3 to 6 and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) on
pages 38 to 42 of this Annual Report. The Chairman’s Statement
and ESG Report also form part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

Market Risks

The Group faces the risk of a reduction in earnings or capital caused
by the adverse price movements of its investments held.

To properly manage the market risks, the Group had established
investment policies and procedures which were reviewed and
updated regularly. The Executive Committee (“Exco”) has been
given the full power of the Board and is responsible for setting and
modifying investment strategies and policies of the Group. On the
other hand, the investment manager is responsible for advising
the Exco on investments, carrying out research on investment
ideas and execution of investment decisions approved by the Exco.
The investment policies and procedures also detail the investment
processes and restrictions. Report showing the effects on the
investments due to changes in market prices is submitted to the
Exco daily by the investment manager.

Under this well-established governance structure, the relevant risks
can be identified, assessed, controlled and reported throughout the
Group on a timely basis.

Liquidity Risks

The Group faces the risks that it, although solvent, either does not
have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they fall
due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost.

The Group aims at maintaining positive net current assets at all
times. In this regard, report showing free cash balances is sent to the
Exco daily for reference. Facility line is also maintained with banker,
so as to ensure sufficient funds are available once needed.
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Business Review (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company (continued)
Operational Risks

The Group faces the risk of direct or indirect impacts resulting from
human factors, inadequate or failed internal processes and systems
or external events.

Since the management of the Group has been delegated to the
investment manager, the prime responsibility for the management
of operational risk rests with the relevant departmental units of the
investment manager where the risk arises. Each relevant department
head of the investment manager has to identify risks, evaluate
the effectiveness of key controls in place, assess whether the risks
are effectively managed and notify the Board on an exceptional
reporting basis by investment manager.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's principal activities are investments in listed or unlisted
financial instruments in Hong Kong and elsewhere. The Company
has to invest in accordance with the restrictions stated in its articles
of association (details can be referred to Article 178 of The Article of
Association of the Company in the Company’s website). Meanwhile,
the Company is a company listed in Hong Kong. The Group also
has to comply with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange of Hong Kong”). During the year ended 31st
December, 2018 and up to the date of this report and to the best
of the Directors’ knowledge and belief, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions as far as its investments are concerned.

Key Relationships

Investment Manager

Under an investment management agreement, the Group is
managed by the investment manager, Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited (“YMIM"), including day-to-day management
and administration. The Board, in particular, the Exco has close and
regular communication with representatives of YMIM to ensure
that the Group’s missions and objectives are closely followed by the
investment manager.
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Financial Statements and Appropriations

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 and the financial position of the Group at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to
159.

The Board has resolved not to declare a dividend for the year ended
31st December, 2018.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December, 2018 are
shown in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
shown in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were
as follows:

Warren Lee Wa Lun
Mark Wong Tai Chun
Arthur George Dew
Albert Ho

Peter Lee Yip Wah
Louie Chun Kit

In accordance with article 101 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr. Louie Chun Kit will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM"). Each of the retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received confirmations of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, and considers them to be independent.
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HAEBEHMA - NTEEPRJICHRE BB AR LTI ANTE
ZIWBRATF] o FRAR—N/USFEEREEBEThe University of
East Angliall ER{SIEEEB L+ 8B(7 - LARKR— N \U\FUEEK
SEHS M3 The City University Business School 2 3 E2R8 + E2(77 o

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Biographical Details of Directors
The biographical details of the Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Warren Lee Wa Lun, aged 55, first joined the Company as
manager in July 1992. He first became a Director of the Group in
September 2004. He was appointed the Chairman of the Board
and ceased to act as the Managing Director of the Company in
March 2009. Mr. Lee is also a director of YMIM, the investment
manager of the Company and a subsidiary of Allied Group Limited
("AGL"), a substantial shareholder of the Company and a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
From November 2007 to March 2015, Mr. Lee was a non-executive
chairman of Rotol Singapore Ltd (“Rotol”). Rotol was listed on
the main board of the Singapore Exchange Limited until August
2011.
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise market of the

He retired as an executive director of Viva China Holdings

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, in June 2013. He was appointed an
executive director of First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (provisional
liquidators have been discharged with effect from 4th September,
2012) ("FNF") in December 2008 and was re-designated as a non-
executive director of FNF in September 2012 and resigned as a non-
executive director in November 2013. FNF is listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. From February 2013
to April 2013, he was a non-executive director of China Kingstone
Mining Holdings Limited (“CKM"). CKM is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. From December 2006 to May
2007, he was the chief executive officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc.
(“NTEI"), an electronics manufacturing services provider listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. From March 2004 to February 2006,
he was an independent non-executive director of Nam Tai Electronic
& Electrical Products Limited (“NTEEP”), and from February 2006 to
April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-executive director. From
January 2007 to April 2007, he was also a non-executive director
of J.I.C. Technology Company Limited (“JIC"). At the time of his
directorship, both NTEEP and JIC were listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and subsidiaries of NTEl. Mr. Lee
graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree from The University
of East Anglia in England in 1986 and obtained a distinction in
Master of Science Degree from The City University Business School
in London in 1988.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mark Wong Tai Chun, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in December 2008. He has a Master's
Degree in Business Administration and is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He was the financial controller of other
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an executive director of
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited ("APL"), a fellow subsidiary of the
Company, and the director of investment of AGL, and an alternate
director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in APAC Resources Limited
("APAC"), Tanami Gold NL (“Tanami Gold"), Dragon Mining
Limited (“Dragon Mining”) and Tian An Australia Limited (“Tian An
Australia”). APL, AGL, APAC and Dragon Mining are companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
Tanami Gold and Tian An Australia are companies listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange.

Non-Executive Director

Arthur George Dew, aged 77, was appointed a Non-Executive
Director of the Company in November 2007. He graduated from the
Law School of the University of Sydney, Australia, and was admitted
as a solicitor and later as a barrister of the Supreme Court of New
South Wales, Australia. He is currently a non-practising barrister. He
has a broad range of corporate and business experience and has
served as a director, and in some instances chairman of the board
of directors, of a number of public companies listed in Australia,
Hong Kong and elsewhere. He is the chairman and a non-executive
director of each of AGL, APL, APAC, Dragon Mining and Tian An
Australia. He is also a non-executive director of Tanami Gold and
was appointed as non-independent chairman in November 2018.
AGL, APL, APAC and Dragon Mining are companies listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Tian An Australia
and Tanami Gold are companies listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Albert Ho, aged 61, joined the Group as an Alternate Director to
an Independent Non-Executive Director in 1999 and became an
Independent Non-Executive Director in 2004. Mr. Ho graduated
from the Macquarie University, Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor
of Economics and MBA from the University of Hong Kong. He is
a Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ho is also an independent
non-executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Peter Lee Yip Wah, aged 76, joined the Group in 1998 and
was re-designated as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company in June 2015. Mr. Lee is a retired solicitor in Hong
Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of China
Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. He was an
independent non-executive director of Sinotrans Shipping Limited
("Sinotrans Shipping”). He ceased to act as independent non-
executive director of Sinotrans Shipping following the delisting of
its shares from the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on 16th January,
2019.

Louie Chun Kit, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in August 2010. He is
a practising accountant. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He spent over
10 years as the chief accountant in YMIM and around 5 years in the
audit practice with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong.
He holds a diploma in accounting from Lingnan College in 1988
and a master degree in business systems from Monash University
of Australia in 2005. From June 2010 to April 2012, he was also an
independent non-executive director of Eagle Legend Asia Limited
(formerly known as Manta Holdings Company Limited), a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Director’s Fees

With the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Board approved the proposal for adjustment of director’s fee of
each non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) for the financial year of 2019. Subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company, the director’s fee for each of Mr.
Arthur George Dew (non-executive Director) and Mr. Peter Lee Yip
Wah and Mr. Louie Chun Kit (independent non-executive Directors),
all being members of audit, nomination and remuneration
committees of the Company, will be adjusted from HK$80,000 to
HK$85,000 per annum while the director’s fee of Mr. Albert Ho
(independent non-executive Director), being chairman of audit,
nomination and remuneration committees of the Company) will be
adjusted from HK$130,000 to HK$138,000 per annum.

Directors’ Interest in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

During the year, YMIM, of which Warren Lee Wa Lun is a director,
entitled to receive a management fee of HK$17,824,000 payable
by the Group in accordance with a management agreement signed
between the Group and YMIM.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transaction” and
“Management Agreement” of this report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group'’s
business to which the Company, its holding companies, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a
Director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transaction

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31st December, 2018, which may also
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction are carried out and disclosed in
compliance with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and Associated Corporations

The interests and short positions of the Directors of the Company
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
at 31st December, 2018, which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors and the Chief Executives of the Company were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares of the Company

% of the total relevant

Number of issued shares as at

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests shares held 31st December, 2018

RZZE-N\F

+=-—A=+—8H

BERG HEEERITRG

EEpE =37 EEME B BYEDLL

Peter Lee Yip Wah Beneficial owner Personal 3,410,000 0.08%
FEHE BamEAA (EUN

Albert Ho Beneficial owner Personal 2,296,000 0.06%
fATHRAR BamEAA 1A

BREAKEN  REBEE-FT-N\Ft-_A=1+—BLEFEARAZ
EARME - ARE - EEEERATR - ERRMBAE - A
JB A RS AR A BT S AR HE - SR RRZEEAHE
BARRBHEMAR 2 RN AELFTES °

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31st
December, 2018 was the Company, any of its holding companies,
its fellow subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its associated corporations,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and Associated Corporations (continued)

Interests in shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the Chief
Executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors (not being the Independent Non-Executive Directors) are
considered to have interests in the businesses listed below which
compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules:

(i) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a director of each of AGL, APL
and APAC which, through certain of their subsidiaries, are
involved in the investment in financial instruments; and

(i) Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is a director of APL and an alternate
director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in APAC which, through
certain of its subsidiaries, are involved in the investment in
financial instruments.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing
interests in other companies by virtue of their respective common
directorship, they will fulfill their fiduciary duties in order to ensure
that they will act in the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Company as a whole at
all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm'’s length from, the businesses of such
companies.

Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed “Directors”
on page 9, the persons who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31st December,
2018 and up to the date of this report included Mr. Edwin Lo King
Yau, Mr. Lo Tai On, Mr. Jonathan Weiyan Seah, Mr. Matthew Jarrod
Hackett, Contana Investment Limited and City Power (Nominee)
Limited.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her
office otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors of the Group.



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

FERR

RIZE-NF+ZA=+—0 BREARARES RHPEK
BIEEXVEPEI36IFREMRE 2 T B R R FAR BRLMA
B YANTALTRRARBARRRAFAERRASETRAR
MR A 2 A L2 s

15

2018 £ FMIV/EFRAT

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31st December, 2018, the following persons or corporations,
having interest in 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company have been notified to the Company and recorded in
the register of substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short
positions required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

% of
total relevant
issued shares

as at
Number of 31st December,
Name of Substantial Shareholders Notes Capacity Nature of interests shares held 2018
R-ZE-N\F
+=A=t+—8H
FERSD EERERT
FTERRER Bt & 514 EEME BE ROBBESL
AGL 1 Interest of controlled Corporate interest ~ 3,082,889,606 74.97%
corporation
e ] IR TS NEINER
Lee and Lee Trust 2 Interest of controlled Corporate interest ~ 3,082,889,606 74.97%
corporation
R TS NEIER
Many Merit Asia Limited (“MMA") 3 Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 329,160,000 8.01%
BEmlEAA BamiEm
Lin Wan Qaing 3 Interest of controlled Corporate interest 329,160,000 8.01%
corporation
ME R RN R NEIRER
Hiat - Notes:
1. A EEFBESEMBAREAARRAT3,082,889,606 %) 1. AGL held 3,082,889,606 shares of the Company through its wholly-

2. TREBR A  EREL L RFRELEY A2 RES7Lee and Lee
TrustZ{Z25EA ° Lee and Lee TrustiZ Bt & 528 2 74.95% 1 25
(ERBEFRBLEZ AAED) RALERIEREEZSHES
SEBmA RS °

3. MMAR B AN A 7]329,160,00002 8515 - MMABMERCEEE
A - Bt - MEREEREBREELEHMMARS Z RHHE

Zs o

BEMEEN  REF-NF+_A=1+—8H EFXTHEK

B EMEAMATRAR R SHAEMEEEE (EEREF AR K
PIEXVES) 2 Befn ~ BRAPTAET A Z MR HEFTHER
BRESRARROIEXVIBZARE - BRAARRHWEHEKE 2 ES

AR o

owned subsidiaries.

2. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the
trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. The Lee
and Lee Trust controlled 74.95% interest in AGL (inclusive of Mr.
Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and were therefore deemed to have
an interest in the said shares in which AGL was interested.

3. MMA holds 329,160,000 shares of the Company. MMA is wholly-
owned by Mr. Lin Wan Qaing. Therefore, Mr. Lin Wan Qaing is
deemed to have an interest in the said shares in which MMA is
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons, who have interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Management Agreement

On 20th November, 2015, an investment management agreement
(the
the Company and YMIM, which was approved by the Shareholders

“Investment Management Agreement”) was entered into by

on 29th December, 2015. Under the Investment Management
Agreement, YMIM agreed to assist the Board with the day-to-
day management of the Group from 1st January, 2016 to 31st
December, 2018. YMIM is entitled to a management fee equal to
1.5% per annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Group
attributable to the owners of the Company, calculated and payable
in arrears on a quarterly basis by reference to the arithmetical
average of the published consolidated net asset value of the Group
attributable to the owners of the Company on the last day of each
calendar month during each quarter; and a performance fee equal
to 20% of the amount by which the audited consolidated net asset
value of the Group attributable to the owners of the Company of
each year ending 31st December, exceeds the audited consolidated
net asset value of the Group attributable to the owners of the
Company as at the end of the latest financial year in which YMIM
was entitled to a performance fee.

A new investment management agreement (the “New Investment
Management Agreement”) for three years effective from 1st
January, 2019, with similar terms set out in the Investment
Management Agreement but new annual caps, was approved by
the independent Shareholders on 12th September, 2018. Details
of the New Investment Management Agreement are set out in the
related circular of the Company dated 24th August, 2018.

As at 31st December, 2018, (i) YMIM was an indirect wholly- owned
subsidiary of AGL which was a substantial Shareholder holding
74.97% interests in the share of the Company; (ii) Mr. Arthur
George Dew was common director of the Company and AGL; and (iii)
Mr. Warren Lee Wa Lun was common director of the Company and
YMIM.

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, management fee of
HK$17,824,000 was paid or payable to YMIM by the Group.

This transaction constitutes a continuing connected transaction and
is required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s Independent Non-Executive Directors had reviewed
the above continuing connected transaction and confirmed that the
said transaction had been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
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Management Agreement (continued)

(0 in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

Confirmation for Continuing Connected Transaction

A letter pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules has been issued
to the Board by the auditor of the Company confirming the matters
stated in Rule 14A.56 in respect of the above continuing connected
transaction for management agreement.

Equity-Linked Agreements
No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Related Party Transactions
Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “"MPF Scheme"”). The MPF Scheme has operated since 1st
December, 2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries. Contributions are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group's obligation under this plan is limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee in accordance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, and now comprises three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Albert Ho, Mr.
Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr. Louie Chun Kit and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. Arthur George Dew.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed risk management, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including review of the annual report for the year ended
31st December, 2018.
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Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Company
to review the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board and assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee now comprises three
Independent Non- Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Albert Ho, Mr.
Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr. Louie Chun Kit and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. Arthur George Dew.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the
Company to consider the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee now
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Albert Ho, Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr. Louie Chun Kit and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Arthur George Dew.

Public Float

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date
of this report, the Company has complied with the public float
requirements of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31st December,
2018.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.

Donations
The Group made charitable donations of HK$160,000 during the
year.

Auditor
BDO Limited (“BDO") is the auditor of the Company. There has
been no change of auditor in the past three years.

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2018 were audited by BDO who will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for its re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By order of the Board

SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited
Lo Tai On

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2019
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The Company recognises that good corporate governance standards
maintained throughout the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) serve as an effective risk management
tool for the Company. The board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is committed to lead the Group growing in an efficient
manner followed by corporate missions in terms of business
strategies and improved operational planning and procedures which
are enforced under high corporate governance standard.

Corporate Governance

The Board believes that corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and has adopted various measures to
ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is maintained.
With effect from 1st January, 2005, the Company has applied the
principles and adopted code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange of Hong Kong”) as its own
code on corporate governance practices. The current practices will
be reviewed and updated regularly to follow the latest practices in
corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31st
December, 2018.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year.
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HITES Executive Directors
TEGIEEE) Mr. Warren Lee Wa Lun (Chairman)
FR$H%E Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun
FETES Non-Executive Director
WTERE Mr. Arthur George Dew
BAFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
RS A Mr. Albert Ho
TEELL Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah
BERGLE Mr. Louie Chun Kit

BYFRTEEZABREEENEZ50% - MAEL
FHTESMRMEERERRACEABEE 2EXE
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BBEERRER BEFZENEREARERERR
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HERERAER) ©
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The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors is 50%
of the Board membership. Two of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Albert Ho and Mr. Louie Chun
Kit, have the appropriate professional accounting experiences
and expertise. Another Independent Non-Executive Director,
Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah, has the appropriate legal experiences.
The Board membership is covered by professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel so as to bring in
valuable contribution and different professional advices and
consultancy for the development of the Company. 100%
of the Board members have recognised professional legal,
securities or accounting qualification. There is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among Board members.

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee to
oversee different areas of the Company's affairs.
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Board of Directors (continued)

All Directors have access to the services of the company
secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director and member of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company may take independent
professional advice if they so wish at the expense of the
Company, as arranged by the company secretary.

The Board has had regular Board meetings in accordance
with the CG Code.

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2018:

Executive Directors

HITEE

Warren Lee Wa Lun (Chairman)
FERER)

Mark Wong Tai Chun

F R

Non-Executive Director
HHTEF

Arthur George Dew
ERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHHITEE

Albert Ho

AR

Peter Lee Yip Wah

FEE

Louie Chun Kit

B R

5/5 100%

5/5 100%

5/5 100%

5/5 100%

5/5 100%

5/5 100%

R-ZF-N\FEABTEEFTEENEH - KOEF—
R-BEEEHNERNEAAMAESTELED 4B 2E
HMoEREEREHLFEERE  MAMBESHAEKEEN
SREAMASE - EFFXNMHEARERAEDIREAR
B URRESHEARABHEHIXMFEASERIEL
FTINERE -

5 regular Board meetings had been held in 2018 at
approximately quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice of
a regular Board meeting is given to all Directors to provide
them with an opportunity to attend and all Directors are given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting. Board papers are despatched to the Directors at
least 3 days before the meeting to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.
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Corporate Management (continued)
Board of Directors (continued)

(a)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and
Management

The Board is committed to establishing the strategic
direction of the Group, setting objectives and business
development plans, maintaining corporate governance
and effective accountability mechanisms in every
aspect of its business. Conducting business in a
socially responsible and honest manner serves both the
Group's and its shareholders’ long-term interests.

The Board delegated its full power and authorities
to the Executive Committee including operation of
normal course of business of the Group; formulating
business policies and making investment decision; and
implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board. The team assumes full accountability to the
Board for the operations of the Group.

The Company is being managed by the investment
manager, Yu Ming Investment Management Limited
("YMIM"), including day-to-day management and
administration.

The following matters must be reserved to the Board:

- publication of final and interim results of the
Company;

- dividend distribution or other distributions, if
any;

- changes to Board composition; or

- notifiable transactions and non-exempted
connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions.

During regular meetings of the Board, the Board
discusses and formulates the overall strategies
of the Group, monitors financial and investment
performances and discusses and approves the annual
and interim results, discusses and decides on other
significant matters, if necessary.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and
officers liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.
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Corporate Management (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

(a)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and
Management (continued)

Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the
year, the management had provide all members of
the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties under the Listing Rules. The
Company had arranged training course during the year
and will continue to arrange and/or funding training
opportunities in respect of the roles, functions and
duties of Directors upon requested by Directors. The
Company had received record of trainings from each
Director relating to development and refreshment
of their knowledge and skills. The participation by
individual Directors in the continuous professional
development during the year is recorded in the table
below:

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant to
the business or
directors’ duties or

risk management or

Reading regulatory
or monthly updates/

attending in-house taxation or
Directors briefings financial reporting
SHERERRNES
FEESR BERRBREER
BHMEAS BRI ER
BREHER HE ZERENE
5 ABENE ERE 'E
Executive Directors
HITES
Warren Lee Wa Lun
FHEy v v
Mark Wong Tai Chun
BN | v v
Non-Executive Director
FHITES
Arthur George Dew
WERE v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Albert Ho
fATHRAR v v
Peter Lee Yip Wah
FERE v v
Louie Chun Kit
B v v
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Corporate Management (continued)
i Board of Directors (continued)

(a)

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and
Management (continued)

The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code. The major roles and functions of the Board in
respect of the corporate governance are:

- to develop and review the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board had considered the following corporate
governance matters for the financial year 2018:

- review of the usage of annual caps on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group;

- review of all policies and practices adopted by
the Company including, inter alia, shareholders
communication policy, etc;

- review of the compliance with the CG Code;
- review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the

Company through the Audit Committee; and

- review and approval of renewal of investment
management agreement.
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Corporate Management (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

(b)

(9]

Chairman and Managing Director
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board.

The position of Managing Director is delegated with
the authorities to manage the Group’s business in all
aspects effectively, implement major strategies, make
day-to-day decision and coordinate overall business
operation. The Company currently has not appointed
an individual managing director as the Company is
being managed by the investment manager.

Terms of appointment and re-election of Directors
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company have a
specific term of appointment for one year, subject
to retirement and re-election in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. At each AGM,
one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.

The Company has formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is established by the Board,

comprising Mr. Warren Lee Wa Lun and Mr. Mark Wong Tai

Chun, being the Executive Directors of the Company, which

has been authorised to make investment decisions on behalf

of the Group and operates normal course of business of the

Group.
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Corporate Management (continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established and currently
consists of four Non-Executive Directors, three of whom are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. To retain independence
and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The current members of the Audit
Committee are Mr. Albert Ho (Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. Arthur George Dew, Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr.
Louie Chun Kit. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(@  to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and to consider any questions
of resignation or dismissal of the auditor;

(b)  to consider and discuss with external auditor the
nature and scope of each year’s audit;

(0 to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

(d)  to review the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements before submission to the Board;

(e)  to discuss any problems and reservation arising from
the interim review and final audit, and any matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss;

(f) to review the external auditor’'s management letters (if
any) and management'’s response; and

() to review the Group’'s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong.
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Corporate Management (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
The works of the Audit Committee during the year under
review included:

(@  reviewing the 2017 annual results and 2018 interim
results of the Group;

(b)  discussing with the management of the Company over
the completeness, fairness and adequate accounting
standards and policies of the Group in the preparation
of the 2017 annual financial statements and 2018
interim financial statements;

(©)  reviewing and discussing with the external auditor over
the financial reporting of the Company;

(d)  reviewing and approving the 2018 audit scope and
fees;

(e)  recommending to the Board, for the approval by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), of
the re-appointment of the external auditor;

(f) reviewing the arrangement (including investigation and
following up action, if any) under the whistle blower
policy;

(9 reviewing the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year (if any);

(h)  reviewing internal audit report and plan; and

(i) reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.

As at 31st December, 2018, the arrangement for employees
of the Group to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control and other matters
through whistle blower policy is in place. No reporting had
been received by Audit Committee during the year.

In 2018, the Audit Committee members met 2 times with
external auditor and met 1 time with internal auditor. Each
committee meeting was supplied with the necessary financial
information of the Group for enabling the members to
consider, review and assess matters of significance arising
from the work conducted.
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Corporate Management (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
Attendance of individual members of Audit Committee at
audit committee meetings in 2018:

Albert Ho (Chairman)
(CE I NE D)
Arthur George Dew
INERSA

Louie Chun Kit
s

Peter Lee Yip Wah
FHE

3/3 100%

3/3 100%

3/3 100%

3/3 100%

REZES
EXgCRURBZEGUNA LRI KA — BB
FRTEEEELE - REZESHANBKEAR
BB EMITEEMEMELE(ZEEERE)  FTEEL
EREERERE  ARIFATEFKDELRLE - RE2Z
ERERHUFTMERABITER -

REZEGZIEZMERBEER

LPEBERNEFEINRE - ABRAEAKR(BRER
CHBEBNERTE)  AREARESRQRR
ARIEMAEHESSRHNEEIRNEE

(a)

5 2 )
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established by the
Board to comply with the Listing Rules and is chaired by
an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises four members, namely Mr.
Albert Ho (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Peter Lee Yip
Wah and Mr. Louie Chun Kit, being Independent Non-
Executive Directors and Mr. Arthur George Dew, being Non-
Executive Director. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are:

(@)  toreview the structure, size and composition (including
the skill, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship;

(c)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.
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iv.

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has formulated and set out
the nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) in its terms of
reference. The objective of the Nomination Policy is to ensure
that the Board should have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. To ensure changes to the Board
composition can be managed without undue disruption,
there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment
of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession
(if considered necessary), including periodical review of such
plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional
Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any
re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by the
Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate
by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate
is qualified shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute
to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying
out by the Board of the responsibilities. Further details of the
selection criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

There was no change in directorship during the year.

Two nomination committee meetings were held during the
year with 100% attendance rate in the presence of Mr.
Albert Ho, Mr. Arthur George Dew, Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah
and Mr. Louie Chun Kit to (i) review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, (ii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-Executive Directors, (iii) review the re-
election of retiring directors at the forthcoming AGM, (iv)
review the board diversity policy, (v) terms of appointment of
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors); and (vi) make recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Management (continued)

V.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established and is
chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director, currently
comprising four members, namely Mr. Albert Ho (Chairman
of the Committee), Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr. Louie
Chun Kit, being Independent Non-Executive Directors and
Mr. Arthur George Dew, being Non-Executive Director during
the year. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(@  to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

(b)  to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management;

(0 to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives approved by the Board from time to time;

(d)  to review and approve the compensation payable to
Executive Directors relating to any loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

(f) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

One remuneration committee meeting was held in 2018 with
100% attendance rate in the presence of Mr. Albert Ho, Mr.
Arthur George Dew, Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah and Mr. Louie
Chun Kit. The Remuneration Committee had discussed and
reviewed remuneration of Executive Directors and Directors’
fee of all members of the Board and made recommendation
to the Board as well as the Group remuneration policy, etc.
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WIS

vii.

viii.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is to ensure that all
employees, including Directors, are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and
remuneration offered is appropriate for their duties and in
line with market practice. No Director, or any of his associates,
and executive is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Board diversity policy

The board diversity policy of the company sets out the
objectives and principles regarding board diversity for the
benefits of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives
with a view of having a balanced diversity of both skills and
experience and of perspective. Board appointments will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered against
measurable objectives, taking into account the Company’s
business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, knowledge, professional experience
and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to
the Board.

The Directors will consider and review the diversity of the
Board and to set up, if appropriate, measurable objectives
according to the Company’s own business model and specific
needs.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the dividend policy effective on
1st January 2019. The Company’s dividend policy aims
at providing reasonable and sustainable returns to its
shareholders whilst maintaining a position of financial
stability which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment and expansion opportunities that may arise from
time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividend on an annual
basis and/or may declare interim dividends or special
dividends. Proposal or declaration of dividends by the Board
is subject to consideration of the Company’s and the Group's
operating results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing,
liquidity position, capital commitment requirement and
future expansion plan as well as general economic conditions
and external factors that may have impact on the financial
performance and position of the Company and the Group. In
addition, as the Company is a holding company, the Board
will also consider the dividends received from its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures as the ability to pay dividends by
the Company is dependent on the dividends received from
those subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will
amend and/or modify the dividend policy if necessary.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Executive Directors are closely involved in and are directly
responsible for all activities of the Group and the Company was
managed by the investment manager. The Board considers that the
senior management comprise the Executive Directors.

Particulars regarding senior management and other Directors’
remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to
114.

Company Secretary

The Company has engaged and appointed a representative from an
external secretarial services provider as the company secretary of the
Company. The primary contact person with the company secretary
is Mr. Warren Lee Wa Lun, Chairman of the Board. The company
secretary of the Company has duly complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Communication
The Company had established a shareholders’ communication policy
and shall review it on a periodic basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders mainly in
the following ways: (i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary
general meetings (“EGM"), if any, which may be convened for
specific purposes and provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly to the Board; (ii) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports, circulars on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong;
and (jii) the availability of latest information of the Group on the
website of the Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The Company'’s notices to the Shareholders for the AGM and EGM
held in 2018 were sent to the Shareholders respectively at least 20
clear business days or 21 clear days and at least 10 clear business
days or 14 clear days, whichever is the longest.

Certain Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, chairman
and members of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, and the representative of external
auditor were available at the AGM held on 21st May, 2018 to
answer questions from the Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
explained the procedures for conducting a poll during the meeting.
All resolutions proposed at the AGM were voted separately by way
of poll. All the votes cast at the said meeting were properly counted
and recorded.
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Corporate Communication (continued)

An EGM was held in September 2018 for approval of continuing
connected transaction. Independent Non-Executive Directors were
available to answer questions at the EGM. The chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures of conducting a poll during
the meeting. A resolution proposed at the EGM was voted by way
of poll. All the votes cast at the said meeting were properly counted
and recorded.

Attendance of individual Directors at general meetings in 2018:

AGM
BRBFRE

EGM
BRREFRIAE

Executive Directors
HITES

Warren Lee Wa Lun (Chairman)
FER(EE)

Mark Wong Tai Chun

BN

Non-Executive Director
FHTES

Arthur George Dew
WERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES

Albert Ho

AR

Peter Lee Yip Wah

FERE

Louie Chun Kit

EES

11 100% 171 100%

11 100% 171 100%

11 100% 01 0%

11 100% 01 0%
11 100% 11 100%

11 100% 171 100%

ARAREERFRBFAEEN - NFREA_+-RET -
EE FRENZRBNBIREFRETRR °

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 21st May,
2019 and resolutions to be proposed thereat will be voted separately
by way of poll.
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Convening of EGM
The Company may also communicate with its members through
EGM, if and when appropriate.

Pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”),
the members of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meetings may request the Directors to call a general meeting. The
request must state the general nature of business to be dealt with
at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request may consist of several documents in like form and may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the request proceed duly to convene a general meeting for a day
not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening
a general meeting is given, the members concerned or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting, provided that the
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of 3 months from such date.

The general meeting convened by such members shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general
meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for Members Putting Forward Proposals
Members may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting. Pursuant to Section 615 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the members of the Company may request the Company
to give, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form
and must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, be
authenticated by the person or persons making it and be received by
the Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to which the
requests relates; or if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received the
requests from (a) members representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members who have a right to vote on the
resolution to which the request relate; or (b) at least 50 members
who have a relevant right to vote on the resolution to which the
request relate.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, details and
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for Members Putting Enquiries to the Board
Members have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong or by e-mail to info@ymi.com.hk for the
attention of Mr. Warren Lee Wa Lun.

The above procedures are subject to the articles of association of the
Company and applicable laws and regulations.

Constitutional Documents
There was no change in the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31st December, 2018.

The articles of association of the Company are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group's systems of risk management and internal control
involve the operation and/or supervision of the Board, the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the investment manager and the
internal auditor. The main features and the key processes that have
been established in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
such systems are stated below.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's systems of
risk management and internal control. However, such systems are
designed to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk
profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information and records
or against financial losses or fraud.

The Board has overall responsibility in monitoring the process of
corporate reporting and control system throughout the Group.
It delegates the duties of proper and regular reviews on the
deployment of resources and financial reporting systems, the
corporate governance practices and compliance with the Listing
Rules, the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance and other
applicable regulations to the investment manager, YMIM. The
investment manager reviews and briefs the reporting systems with
the Audit Committee at least annually.

The Board, through the recommendations from the Executive
Committee, has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes updating the systems of risk
management and internal control when there are changes to
business environment or regulatory guidelines. The effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control systems
are reviewed annually. The process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks is also set out on pages 7 and 8 of this
Annual Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Board, through
the Audit Committee with the assistance of internal auditor
and the senior management of the Company, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group (including
the consideration of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function). The
controls within these systems were considered effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect financial,
operational, compliance controls, internal audit, risk management
and internal control functions of the Group were identified.

YMIM assists the Board in the implementation of the Board's policies
and procedures on risk and control by identifying and assessing the
risks faced, and involving in the design, operation and monitoring of
suitable internal control to mitigate and control these risks.

The key processes that have been established in reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the systems of risk management and
internal control include the following:

o The Executive Committee is established by the Board to
ensure the effectiveness of the daily operations and that the
operations are in accordance with the corporate objectives
and strategies.

o The Audit Committee reviews risk management and internal
control issues (if any) identified by internal auditor, external
auditor, regulatory authorities and senior management, and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

The internal auditor check for compliance with statutory
requirement, internal policies and procedures. They assess the
operating effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management and
internal control systems in the course of their audit. The audit scope
and frequency are determined by the level of assessed risks and
have to be reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Group has already established the Inside Information
Policies. They depict clearly the decision trees to distinguish inside
information and the necessary actions.

Employees are required to keep all inside information in strict
confidence. Once the inside information needs disclosure, the
manner must be equal, timely and effective.
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Services rendered

Auditor's Remuneration

During the year under review, the remunerations paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, BDO Limited (“BDQO"), also auditor of
subsidiaries of the Company, are set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable

R IR Bt EAEAR
HK$'000
BT
BDO
ER VAL E
— Audit services
— ZBURTS 299
— Other non-audit services
— E IR BUR TS 98
397

ESNGEMERNERFSMBRR2EME

EFORARERAVBREDIWEZEME - REEIBGE M
BRRELME 2 BETBRPHANFI3AEFI8E 2B ZHED

WE

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities in Preparing
and Reporting the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. The statement of the auditor
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
43 t0 48.
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Approach and Strategy

SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited believes in delivering long term,
sustainable value creation to our shareholders. In doing so, we
recognize that the choices we make will have an impact on the
communities in which we carry on our business and we should
make such impact a positive one. We are committed to contributing
to the sustainable development of society and the environment,
and endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our practice
and governance. The Company has adopted a Sustainability
Policy in November 2016 which covers our principles in the area
of employment and labour practices, business integrity, the
environment and the community.

This report outlines the Group’s sustainability initiatives and selected
Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”) that are material to the Group
and its stakeholders on Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") issues for the year ended 31st December, 2018. This report
supplements information disclosed in this Annual Report.

Reporting Scope

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” for listed
issuers published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"ESG Reporting Guide”).

Materiality Assessment and Stakeholder Engagement
Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the
ESG Reporting Guide, the following is the list of issues that are
considered to be material and relevant to the Group. The priorities
are set based on management’s view as well as certain conclusions
from our stakeholders’ engagement. Based on management’s view,
the aspects and KPIs relevant to this report’s disclosure are set out as
follows:

Material and relevant issues:

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI B5.1,
B5.2

Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2

Other relevant issues:

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure

Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general
disclosure, KPI A3.1

Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1,
B3.2

Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure

Product responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.5

Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure, KPI B8.1,
B8.2
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Materiality Assessment And Stakeholder Engagement
(continued)

All other KPIs not mentioned above were considered not relevant for
detailed disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of
provisions by the ESG Reporting Guide.

A. Environmental Issues
The Group's Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach
towards environmental issues. We endeavour to:

- observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond
minimum requirements;

- prevent/minimize air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste;

- make efficient use of resources, including energy and water;

- minimise the impact of the Group’s activities on the
environment and natural resources; and

- engage our staff and partners to promote environmentally
sustainable business practices and constantly re-assess our
processes to minimize environmental impact.

Emissions (Aspect A1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities. Emissions
produced are mostly on a “second degree” basis as incurred during
occasional business travels.

In line with our policy to minimize air and greenhouse gas emissions,
major operations are equipped with audio conferencing facilities
to minimize the need for face to face meetings and keep business
travelling to a minimum.

There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our business
on this aspect.

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and The Environment and
Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We place a high priority on the efficient use of resources. With
only 6 Directors (including 1 staff member) across the Company,
we consume limited amounts of electricity and paper. Water
consumption is not material to our business as it relates only to the
personal consumption of our staff for their personal hygiene.
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A. Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and The Environment and
Natural Resources (Aspect A3) (continued)

Environmental protection guidelines in relation to energy savings
and reduction in paper consumption are circulated to all staff and
the investment manager. For instance, staff are reminded to switch
off lights and equipment after work, during lunch break or during
the time working outside the office and wherever possible. Energy
efficient office equipment is always preferred in making purchase
decisions. During 2018, the Group's total electricity consumption
was below 5,000 kwh and similar to 2017.

Throughout the Group, the following business processes were
implemented whenever possible to improve efficiency and to reduce
paper usage:

- Electronic bank and broker statements

- Recycling schemes of office equipment and supplies

- Internal electronic administration and communication
platform

Recycling scheme for paper has been launched within the Group.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group’s businesses have no
direct impact on the environment and natural resources.

B. Social Issues

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards (Aspect
B1, B2, B4)

Being in the financial services industry, our people are our most
important assets that drive the long-term development and
sustainability of the Group. The Group's policy on employment is as
follows:

- observing relevant laws and regulations;

- being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair
practices relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
for our staff;

- providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and
protecting employees from occupational hazards;

- promoting a good work-life balance for staff;

- investing in training and professional development of our

staff for the purpose of improving their knowledge and skills

for discharging duties at work; and

maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a

transparent two way communication.
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B. Social Issues (continued)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards (Aspect
B1, B2, B4) (continued)

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employment of staff is governed by the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as
the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. The Group has no known
non-compliance with the above relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest
periods, welfare) need to be competitive with other peers in the
financial services sector and in general exceeds the minimum as
required by the relevant regulations. Owing to the nature of our
businesses, work related injuries, occupational health issues and the
incurrence of child labour are not significant risk factors.

Further information on the Group’s human resources is also detailed
in the Chairman’s Statement on page 6 of this Annual Report.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working
environment for our staff. On top of this, for community service
purposes, the Group also participates in various donation activities
organised by The Women'’s Foundation, Cambodian Children’s Fund
and Kids4Kids.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group has a total of 6 Directors.
By gender, 100% male. By age group, 50% and 50% between age
group of 46 to 55 and over 55 respectively.

Development and Training (Aspect B3)

The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning
in our organisation. Heavy emphasis is placed on staff training which
is tailored to equip our workforce with the necessary knowledge
and skills relevant to their work, as well as to build our talent pool.
Senior management is involved, together with professional trainers,
in designing training programmes that meet the demands of the
work place. Training content during 2018 includes an update of
listing rules and corporate governance code.

Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group interacts with a number of business partners such as
law firms, securities brokers, tax advisors and consulting companies.
These are not considered to pose significant social risks for our
business and procurement decisions are based on pricing, suitability
as well as the reputation of suppliers.
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B. Social Issues (continued)

Product Responsibility (Aspect B6)

Comprehensive policies and procedures have been implemented to
facilitate a responsible and efficient investment process. We perform
rigorous assessments and monitoring during pre-acquisition, hold
and exit phases with an aim to identity, assess and mitigate relevant
investment risks and achieve the targeted returns. Investment
opportunities are subject to stringent screening in line with our
procedures by the investment manager and Executive Committee,
comprised of experienced professionals, to ensure our investment
decisions are prudent, consistent and impartial.

We strictly protect the confidentiality of non-public material
information. All staff members of investment manager and the
Company are reminded of the importance of keeping confidential
any aspects of the Company’s business and the need to comply with
the requirements of confidentiality. Non-disclosure agreements are
signed with the counterparty where applicable to prevent leakage
and loss of confidential information.

Anti-Corruption (Aspect B7)

A Whistle Blower Policy has been established to facilitate the
Company’s or investment manager’s employees’ direct reporting
of any unlawful conduct, any incident of corruption, avoidance of
internal control, incorrect or improper financial or other reporting to
senior management. This policy is either circulated in the Company’s
or investment manager’'s employees periodically or placed on the
corporate electronic platform of the Group to facilitate their easy
access and reporting.

Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel and undertake the responsibility of a good
corporate citizen contributing to the community by encouraging our
staff to enroll in charity and social services.

During 2018, the Group sponsored the activities organized by The
Women's Foundation, Cambodian Children’s Fund and Kids4Kids
because we share the similar missions with these organisations.
Everyone deserves to be treated equally no matter their gender
or background. The Women's Foundation strives to improve the
lives of women in Hong Kong by challenging gender stereotypes,
empowering women in poverty and advancing women leaders.
Cambodian Children’s Fund and Kids4Kids provide support to
kids and young people to ignite their power to develop social
responsibility.

In addition, the Group in 2018 donated to The Founders and
Veterans of The Hong Kong Junior Police Officers” Association for
the welfare of retired policemen and to The Association for the
Rights of Industrial Accident Victims to support those suffering from
industrial accident injuries and occupational diseases.
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111 Connaught Road Central
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To the members of
SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SHK
Hong Kong Industries Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st December, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December, 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuations of Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive at income (“FVOCI”)

Financial assets at FVOCI included listed and unlisted debt securities
which amounted to approximately HK$103 million as at 31st
December, 2018.

The valuations of the listed and unlisted debt securities carried at
fair value had been determined by management with assistance
of an independent professional valuer. Such valuations involve the
determination of the valuation models and the selection of different
inputs and the assumptions made in the valuation models by
management and the independent professional valuer, in particular
the applicable borrowing rates of the issuers of the debt securities as
at the valuation date. Any changes in valuation models adopted and
inputs and assumptions applied could lead to significant changes
in amounts reported as fair value in the consolidated financial
statements.

We identified valuations of financial assets at FVOCI as a key audit
matter because the valuation of financial instruments without a
quoted price in an active market is a complex area and involves
a higher degree of estimation, uncertainty and judgment. These
financial instruments are material to the Group.

Refer to notes 3.6a, 4, 15 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Our response:

Our procedures on valuation of financial assets at FVOCI relating to
listed and unlisted debt securities included:

o Assessing the valuation methodology applied on the
financial instruments;

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions in the
valuation based on our knowledge;

. Reconciling input data used in the valuation to supporting
evidence; and

. Assessing the scope, expertise and independence of the
independent professional valuer appointed by the Group.

Other Information in the Annual Report
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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FRE UG EMBHRARKRER - BEARER
g EERPTEENERTIE BFEARBENER
BRAERHEL -

EEREZZBEIN(ETER)BRTENIHERKHAR
BREAREZER  BRESNEZHEES L ATEENE
AIEABREEE o

EENAEZZEGRIER  SHAEFCETERBELIEN
BRERENR  YHMAMARKSERRTETYESSTNBEIIENRIE
REMEERABHEERE(ER) BERERNARER -
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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R T

BB BT RSN BRRNEEE)

EEREEEBBNFTRTD  REWLERH ARG M ER
RNBZTERREER - AMBKBEREZSEE - [RIPEAENK
FERTBRFRAARBHLEEE  INEFEENERAT - BER
REBHEERASEEMNTRERBBUARMNBMEE
BERHNEM TN RETEE - BREFENRBERE T HE
AL FEIE

BRI CEREMEEMERARA
HEDITAD

RIFR

BEFBSZHEIE - P05412

B8 —_E-NAF=A-+H

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping

Practising Certificate Number: P05412

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERmK

HE—ZT— \F+-A=1+—HI-4E For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT BT
Revenue
N 5 23,756
Other net (loss)/income
Hib (&8), WA ERE 6 175,889
Administrative and other operating expenses
THEAMELER 7 (31,998)
Share of loss of associates
JEL Rk N RIET1E (975)
(Loss)/profit before income tax
Fr8Bial (B518), 57 7 166,672
Income tax expense
Fris R 8 -
(Loss)/profit for the year
FEE(BHR) 5T 166,672
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to:
FEE(BR) nFIEES
Owners of the Company
I/NEIEZ ZS N 166,667
Non-controlling interests
FEIER M A 5
166,672
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company (HK cents)
KAREEARESR(EE), BT GBIL) 70
— Basic
— &R 4.05
— Diluted
— ¥ 4.05

Turnover — gross proceeds and revenue
B — PSSR EE RIA 5 722,628
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEmRkEMZERER

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2018 2017
—B-N\F 5

HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TAT

(Loss)/profit for the year
REE (BB, SamH 166,672
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income
Ht2mE(ER), W
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
RETHEEN 7 HEREIRE
Change in fair value of financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI|")
RAFESARMERRE (MRATEFT AR MEE K D)

B EE N THER -
Reclassification adjustment for realisation upon redemption

of financial assets at FVOCI
EE O A FER A M 2 WS I B E R

BEmMENDRRAE -
Reclassification adjustment for realisation upon disposal

of an associate
EE s ML A NRRHERHERE -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
A ENBEE 2 A EEE 18,431
Reclassification adjustment for realisation upon redemption of

available-for-sale financial assets
K| O AT (i S B T B EE R IR T R D R R 2,952
Share of other comprehensive income of an associate

R — B AT R b2 EGS .

Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year, net of tax

BREEzAEEHMZE(ER), W 21,611

Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year

AEERE(ER) WHEHEE 188,283

Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year attributable to:

FEEXE(EA) WEEEELS .

Owners of the Company

AATER A 188,179
Non-controlling interests

IR RS 104

188,283
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ara BRI R

W=Z—\#F+=F=+—H As at 31st December, 2018

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERAE

Non-current assets

FREEE

Interests in associates

REEE R A R 14 3,133
Amount due from an associate

JEU — B & R Al skIE 14 9,564
Financial assets at FVOCI

BATEF AR MEEREVEEE 15 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL")

BAVEFABR((RATEFABR P BEE 16 -
Available-for-sale financial assets

AR ETSEE 17 217,551

230,248
Current assets
REBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets
A HE B EE 17 86,564
Other receivables and prepayment
HAb FEMGR RTE FIA 18 162
Financial assets at FVPL
BRAFESABRIIEEE 16 584,734
Cash and cash equivalents

He MREEEY 19 464,208

1,135,668
Current liabilities
REEE
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
B 5 R EAER SRR e B 20 9,715
Amount due to a holding company
R—EEIR AR IR 21 341
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary
R—FE R F M8~ RIFRIE 21 7,462
Financial liabilities at FVPL
BRAHES A BRI BAE 22 4,921

22,439

Net current assets

RBEERE 1,113,229

Total assets less current liabilities

BEERERABARS 1,343,477

Net assets

EEZRE 1,343,477
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e BRI R

W=Z—\F+=F=+—H As at 31st December, 2018

Notes
izt

EQUITY
R
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
AAREE AEGRER
Share capital
N 23 918,978
Reserves
f## 24 423,481

1,342,459
Non-controlling interests
FEFERRE R 1,018
Total equity
RS 1,343,477
Net asset value per share attributable to the owners

of the Company (HK$)
ARRBEEAEEEREEFE(GET) 25 0.33
FLOBEFIS9B 2R EMBEHRERLEARARTEEE([EEE])  The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 159 were
RZBE—NF=ZAZTHEIEREETE - WHTIHIZEFEREK  approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors of the
#E Company (the “Board”) on 20th March, 2019 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Warren Lee Wa Lun Mark Wong Tai Chun
THfy EP\§ |
Chairman Director

E EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmBER

HE—ZT— \F+-A=1+—HI-4E For the year ended 31st December, 2018

Non-
controlling
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company interests

AOREEAEGER FiER R

Capital  Investment
Share contribution  revaluation  Translation Retained Dividend
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings reserve Total
Bx BX@AGHE REEMRE  EXGE  REERR  RERG L
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 24)
(K23)  (Wz2e) (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TiEn TR TR TR

At 1st January, 2018

“2-\5-A-BEER

Impact on initial application HKFRS 9 (Note 2.1(b))
TEEREANBRERARRNTE W2 1)

Adjusted balance at 1st January, 2018
RZB-N\F—A-HORBRES

Loss for the year
rEEER
Qther comprehensive expenses

A 2EER

Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for the year

AEREE(ER)/WE

Interim dividend paid (Note 9)
ERRHRE 7Y

At 31st December, 2018
“I-\E+-A=t-HEE

M ZE- ) N\FE+_A=1+—08 - EEEEE171,635,0008 T8 #  The aggregate amount of these balances of HK$171,635,000 represents
RERE ISR R 2 (S - the reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2018.



54

SHK HONG KONG INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

Non-
controlling Total
EES equity

i

Capital Investment
Share  contribution revaluation Translation Retained Dividend
capital reserve reserve reserve eamings reserve
] R Fls I REEH Re e
Note 24) (Note 24)
(2022)

HKk$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AT TR TR AL AL TR TR TAT

At 1st January, 2017

“T-+F-fA-REE 918978 367 23618 (110) 21,427 - 1,154,280 914 1,155,194
Profit for the year

TERRH - - - - 166,667 - 166,667 5 166,672
Qther comprehensive income

E2mbE - - 21383 129 - - 21512 9 21611

Total comprehensive income for the year
TEEEANRER - - 21,383 129 166,667 - 188,179 104 188283

Interim dividend declared (Note 9)
BRFERE (W) - - - - (205,585) 205,585 - - -

At 31st December, 2017
I EF-f-t-AKE 918,978 367+ 45,001* 19* 172,509* 205,585* 1,342,459 1,018 1,343,477

* RZE—EF TS AT B WEEEETE423,481,0008 K * The aggregate amount of these balances of HK$423,481,000 represents
RGBT 2 - the reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2017.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

HE—ZT— \F+-A=1+—HI-4E For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2018 2017
—g-\F  —EtF

HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAT

Cash flows from operating activities

REEBCRERE

(Loss)/profit before income tax

FrisBiaT(B518), & F 166,672
Adjustments for:

M THIEREH AR

Interest income from financial assets at FVOCI

RATFESAREMEERGEVBEEZFEKRA 5 -
Realised gain on redemption of financial assets at FVOCI

B AT ER A2 W B 75 & E 2 B35 s 6 -
Reversal of impairment loss on interest in an associate

ORI E R R s 2 RIEEE 6 -
Realised gain on redemption of available-for-sale financial assets

BORHEEMBEEc Z RS 6 (90)
Dividend income

BB A 5 (8,705)
Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets

AT E TS B B 2 N B 5 (14,118)
Interest income from bank deposits

RITFFHBUA 5 (933)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities at FVPL

BRATEFABRUBEERABZ A TFEBE /(W) 6 (173,307)
Exchange gain

bEE S W e (1,430)
Share of loss of associates

FE(LEE AR EE 975
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2018 2017
—2-N% —F—tfF

HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TAT

Operating loss before working capital changes
RETREESEHPR 2K LA (30,936)

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables and prepayment

A R WK K TR AR R TE (32 0, 281
Increase in trade and other payables and accrued expenses

B 5 REMERR K& ER B RGN 697
Increase in amount due to a holding company

R —FERRR X R IEIE N 24
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a fellow subsidiary

R—FER ZHE A RFKIECRH L),/ 2,069
Change in financial assets and liabilities at FVPL

BAHEF ARG IBEERBEEY 134,731
Cash generated from operations

REEBELEZRS 106,866
Dividend received

B R 8,705
Bank interest received

EHERITHE 933

Net cash generated from operating activities

EERIEE L VIR S F5E 116,504
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2018 2017
—2-NF —E—tf

HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Cash flows from investing activities
REXBZRERE

Purchase of financial assets at FVOCI

BARL T ER AR 2G5 EE
Purchase of non-current financial assets at FVPL
BAERBIEATEA A BV BEE

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at FVPL
BEEAFESAERMBEE

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at FVOCI
BN ERF AL 2RI 5 EE
Proceeds from disposal of an associate

HE —ME g R A E5IE 14
Interests received from financial assets at FVOCI
RATFESARMEERGEVBEEZ D WFLE
Increase in amount due from an associate

e — lHgk & R B RIBIG AN

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
BARHEEHEEE

Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale financial assets
BORI SN EE 2 PRSHUR

Interest received from available-for-sale financial assets

A ERHEE D HAE

(15)

(8,886)

101,517

9,866

Net cash generated from investing activities

REEBEL 2R FHE

102,482

Cash flows from financing activities
RMEXBRERE

Dividend paid

BEAIRE

Net cash used in financing activities

MEEXBRAZHESER

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
BeRELEEYORD) EFE
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January

R—A—BREREREASZEY

218,986

245,222

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December

RT=A=+—-BZRERAESEEN 19

464,208
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R M R

HE-Z—\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2018

—RER

FITIREBRAB(ARAR ) TIREB A KA
EBZEREERART - AATFAMPERRADFE
DEEMWI AR BT S TITBI138EHARERNES
BI1801E - ARRIZKROREBHERBFIAR AR
([BEBBRAT]) e

 E_T— \F+_A=+—"HILFE  AR2"Z2H8A
AANBEREZHEEIMK L ZBEEERARRAREZ
SRER AR AHAEEEBRAR(HAERE])  BE
SEAE—MEEBFMKIZ AR EMBRAT - AQ
T2 &3 H 77 FLee and Lee TrustZ {E5EA ° Lee and
Lee TrustZEsEAZ EEEE MU BB EFELITE
1385 A BB KE241Z o

ARBREMBAR(SEAI AEE DRFAZETEE
BEBERERLETRIFLTZERMTA -

AT RCAEET > BB MR A ([ B8
KRz )

2.1(a) RAEETERMBREEN -ZF-N\F—
A—BEER

RAFE  AEECHERXEARTIHEESE
AE([EEEMAE])MEMZRETR
BPBMERER  HEAEER _-T—\F—
H—BFmzFEME BRI AMLAER -

BEUBHRELENENE EWITE

EE(BRPBRERE INERFRENNKE
ZE9)RBENR

ERABHLER  EEUBESER
ZH4T —F-MEE=F—A
B FENE

SRERM B RS
RIEFTRAVBRELERNH A KE 2 PBEHEK
TEBAZE - FBRREENFEEME
2.1(b) ° AN - RZB—N\F— A —HHKBHF
EHRER BEMBREERE SR TFE
RURA B AR EBNTERRL B E

HERIEIRIN - RNZEH

General Information

SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. The address of the Company'’s registered office
and principal place of business of the Company is Room
1801, 18th Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company'’s shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange of Hong Kong”).

As at and for the year ended 31st December, 2018, the
parent of the Company is Bright Clear Limited which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Allied Group Limited
("AGL"), a listed public limited company, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate controlling party
of the Company is the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust. The
address of the principal place of business of the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust is 24th Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) during the year
include the investments in listed and unlisted financial
instruments.

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

2.1(a) Adoption of revised HKFRSs — effective 1st
January, 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1st January, 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs has
no significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements except for HKFRS 9. Details of the
changes in accounting policies are discussed in
Note 2.1(b). In addition, HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, which is also effective
for the annual period beginning on 1st January,
2018 has no impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR AR M

HE-Z—)\F+ - A=+—HIL4E For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2. BFAHTREER2ERMBRELEN(EFEY

B

HER(E)

[ = R Pt

2.1(b) BERPHEREEAES -SHMITA

RZBE-NE—-R—BaERENFEEH
- BB BREEREORMA BT E G LR
F£39%% 0 EMTA - ERNFTE - tERES
MBEE  MBaEM - LERIMBKIERA
FERAMAENE Rk - B -FE—\F—H—H
ERAB BV BRE LA EIRSIBRAEEES
BOREE PARBER B BN B HRE LR FEISRM
FEREEENDR

AEERBBERETENERTEMBREE
AN T N\F—A-BEHEHFENR
B REMEENBESTN  AEER-F
—N\F—A—BRBRUERERR - AR
HMEMABMBHRELNEIRNRFATE - 1t
REMTTEY -

TRELSRAMBRARPRABZETEYH
WEERIFSETEMATHERRIVIERAE -

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement for annual period
beginning on or after 1st January, 2018. It sets out
the requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1st January, 2018 has
resulted in changes in accounting policies of the
Group and the Group has been impacted by HKFRS
9 in relation to classification of financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively
to items that existed at 1st January, 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirements.
Under the transition methods chosen, the
Group recognised cumulative effect of the initial
application of HKFRS 9 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1st January, 2018.
Comparative information is not restated.

The following table gives a summary of the opening
balance adjustments recognised for each line item
in the consolidated statement of financial position
that has been impacted by HKFRS 9.
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e B ISR R Y R

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2. EAHTREBRT2EEMBRELEN(EFEY 2.

BmEER D) (&)

2.1(b) EBUBHEEAFESR-SRMIAE)

Available-for-sale financial assets
AL ETBEE

Financial assets at FVPL
BATEFAERTBEE
Financial assets at FVOCI
BATEFAEMEERETEEE
Total non-current assets

FRBEERE

Available-for-sale financial assets

AR ENTEEE

Financial assets at FVOCI
BAFERFAREMEE RGN BEE
Total current assets

RBEERE

Financial liabilities at FVPL
BATEFAEZTBAE
Total current liabilities

REBEERE

Net current assets

REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

EERERRBAEE

Net assets

AEFE

Reserves

fFé

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

RATEE AREEDZAER

Total equity
B

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

Impact on initial

At 31st
December, 2017

RoE—ti
+=A=+—~H
HK$'000

FET

217,551

230,248

86,564

1,135,668

(4,921)

(22,439)

1,113,229

1,343,477

1,343,477

423,481

1,342,459

1,343,477

application

of HKFRS 9
e e R EE
gt Rl
FORH L
HK$'000
SR
(217,551)
170,989
48,705

2,143

(86,564)
81,879

(4,685)

4,921

4,921

236

2,379

2,379

2,379

2,379

2,379

At 1st
January, 2018

R-ZE—N\F
—H—H
HK$'000
FExT
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rE MR AR M

HE—ZT— \F+-A=1+—HI-4E For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2. RAFTREETZEEMBEHEESEN(EEH 2. Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong

HREER ) (&) Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.1(b) BEEMBEREERNFSR-SMTA(E) 2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)
TRBUAR—E—N\F—A—HBEZEFAY The following table summarises the impact of
FEIREER PR RBRBILIEEEMEFEEZ transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings and
e investment revaluation reserve at 1st January, 2018.

HK$'000

THET

Retained Earnings

REBEF

At 31st December, 2017

WZE—tF+-A=+—H 172,509

Transferred from investment revaluation reserve relating to financial assets now measured at FVPL

ERARRATESABRAECIBEERB 2 REBMHE 41,489

Remeasurement of equity securities measured at FVPL

BH T E R AT E ABRHIRAE 2,379

Net increase in retained earnings at 1st January, 2018

R-T—\F—A—BEMREEF 43,868

At 1st January, 2018

R=B-N\¥—-HA—H 216,377

Investment Revaluation Reserve

REShH#E

At 31st December, 2017

RZE—tF+-_A=+—H 45,001

Transferred to retained earnings relating to financial assets now measured at FVPL

BN HEF ARSI BB EEFHERZRE RS (41,489)

Net decrease in investment revaluation reserve at 1st January, 2018

RZZB—NF—HA—BRIREEMHE (41,489)

At 1st January, 2018

R=Z2-N\F—H—H 3,512
NEEHBEREEMMEEMEZEARBESR Further details of the nature and effect of the
K — PR IEESIA T changes to previous accounting policies and the

transition approach are set out below:
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e B ISR R M R

HE-Z—\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2018

2. ERAHTREBRI 2ERMBREE

B|EER ) (&)

2.1(b) BRMBREERFEIN —

RI(T&#R

SRMIAEE)

0] MBEENMBEEND ]

BEM G IMELER

| BRI B EED

BR=ZEIZZMER - AEHEKAE - BA
FEFARMEERE RIRAFERA
1B E - EMRT BB G ERFE39
EMBSEERAR - B HAEIHK
& BERMEKRIE - ATHEE R
BEEMZAFEFABSSENTBE
E o BEMBHREEREIRIMHE
ENABEDRBEEEVBEENEBIE
AMEANREREFHETE

BAFEFREER D RRRAFER
AEE - BRIFZBARETEREE
B WHENRERRERAEERER
NFEFAREMCEEKE (TEREER
EHHIAELG) MBREQAFEEE
BHEEMEEWETRER - BREEL
NBHREMER LT BREER
ENABTAAE THRAERR A
#IT o BELURE  EZRERHBE
Al EtE2mEmkaEs RS RIDRE
ERESHRB(TERERERIIAL

%) o R

RESHRE(TE

REREHIIABR) PREANSES
BARBERN - KRERAFFRENRK
B THERBNBEREATEFABRSE
FRAFEFAEEERE(TERE

BREMIIAEE)

BEREPER

2.

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

0]

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at FVOCI
and at FVPL. These supersede HKAS 39's
categories of held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based
on the business model under which
the financial assets is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (without
subsequent reclassification to profit or loss)
such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
investment revaluation reserve (without
subsequent reclassification to profit or loss)
until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve
(without subsequent reclassification to
profit or loss) is transferred to retained
earnings. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI (without
subsequent reclassification to profit or loss),
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment
is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is
calculated using the effective
interest method,;

- FVOCI - recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within
a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit
losses ("ECLs"), interest income
(calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss; or

- FVPL, if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.
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HKAS 39 carrying
amount at 31st
December, 2017
RIEEBG
ARE395E R
—E—tF

Financial assets at FVPL
BOVESARBUEEE
Equity securities (Note (i)
A B % (B ()

Financial assets at FVOCI
BAVEFAHMZARENEEE
Debt securities (Note (ii)

BB EH (D))

Financial liabilities at FVPL
BAFEFABEHEEE
Derivative financial instruments (Note (ii))

TSR T A (KIEE))

Financial assets classified
as available-for-sale under
HKAS 39 (Notes (i) & ii))
REFBEFHERE395
DERFHEEENTE
B (M EEG) &)

2.

HK$'000

304,115

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded
in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are
not separated from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

The following table reconciles the carrying
amounts of each class of the Group's assets
determined in accordance with HKAS 39
to those determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 9 carrying
amount at 1st
January, 2018

HEERIER
R=B-N\&F
—H—H

R R &
HK$°000
THET

Reclassification Remeasurement

EHHR
HK$'000
Fb7

EXE
HK$'000

Fi#T F7

- 168,610

2,379

- 130,584 -

(4,921) 4,921 -

(304,115) -
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Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
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Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

0] BREENNBABNIEE) (i) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

Biat0): MIBBBSFTERFEI95% - IEFE Note (i); Under HKAS 39, units in funds and sub-
BEZBAES MAIEETIRE Z participation in unlisted investment
B2HESEAHENEVHEE - % not held for trading were classified as
EBRFRBEBYEMELERFWR available-for-sale financial assets. These
RZE—)\F—A—BoEAKRAF securities are classified as financial assets
Bt \ERSHBIBEE - at FVPL under HKFRS 9 at 1st January,

2018.

Biatn): MIBBBSFTERFE395% - IEFE Note (i): Under HKAS 39, debt securities
BEZEBEFEBRATAESRT A and embedded derivative financial
RIS ERAHEENBEERZA instruments not held for trading were
FEAABHVKEEBE - K& classified as available-for-sale financial
BIRBESIHERAZSELLRRES assets and financial assets/liabilities at
B REENEIRR T N\F FVPL respectively. The Group considered
—A—REETHRARSTETAR that it is appropriate not to separate
BT AP DBEH R D BAERA out the embedded derivative from the
FEFAHMEEMK S IEEE - debt host contract and to classify these

securities as financial assets at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 at 1st January, 2018
based on latest assessment.

(i) B EENRE (i) Impairment of financial assets

RABRYBRELENLIRERAE
ErRERR - EEEE S ERE39
FIEELEEBERR BURITAHEES
BEK | - BEMBEREERFEFIRE
AEBURBE B ERE39R BT
HoAth FEUCER R - R B SHAK AR D1 BR OB 75
BENMEAFESAEMEERENE
BREBARPEEERE - R kRE
EBEYAREHMEEHERELAR - #H
BIEREY TEX -

REEEVHREENFN - BHER
IR TR —HEEGE : (1) 12E A
MEBEEER  EAN®RE AHR12
HARBENBEENOEHERNEY
EEEE  RQFRAEHREEERE
BTN & B T AERFHAMA AR
BRNEMHBEENTRHEEESE -

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing
the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“ECLs model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group
to recognise ECLs for other receivables,
financial assets at amortised costs and
debt investment at FVOCI earlier than
HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECLs model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.
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2.

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

For debt financial assets and other
financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs
is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information. The Group's debt investments
at FVOCI are considered to have low credit
risk since most of the issuers’ credit ratings
are high.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.
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Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
in default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the
assets. For debt investments at FVOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income, instead of reducing
the carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the ECL model

(@) Impairment of debt investments

All of the Group's debt investments
at FVOCI, included listed and
unlisted debt securities, are
considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised
during the period was therefore
limited to 12 months ECLs.
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2.

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impact of the ECL model (continued)
(b) Impairment of other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised
cost of the Group includes amount
due from an associate and other
receivables. No ECL was recognised
for amount due from an associate
on 1st January, 2018 and during
the year ended 31st December,
2018.

As a result of the above changes, there is
no impact of the new HKFRS 9 impairment
model results in additional impairment
allowance for the Group at 1st January,
2018.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been
applied retrospectively, except as described
below:

- Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in reserves as at 1st
January, 2018. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under
HKAS 39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current
period.
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2.

Adoption of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

2.1(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

2.2

(iii) Transition (continued)

- The following assessments have
been made on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that
existed at 1st January, 2018 (the
date of initial application of HKFRS
9 by the Group):

- the determination of the
business model within
which a financial asset is
held; and

- certain investments in
equity and debt securities
to be classified as at FVOCI
and at FVPL.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2020
3 Effective for business combination for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1st
January, 2020

3 The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continues to be permitted
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Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

22 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance
over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty
in accounting for income taxes. Under the
Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately
or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity
shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI if specified
conditions are met, instead of at FVPL.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain
or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
joint venture or associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the
Board so far concluded that the application of these new/
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group'’s
financial statements.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

SAI

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements on pages
49 to 159 have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs which collective term includes all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of
Hong Kong). The consolidated financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
the revised HKFRSs and the impact on the Group's
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for:

- financial instruments classified as available-
for-sale, at FVPL and FVOCL, and

- derivative financial instruments

which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are described in
Note 4.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation and business combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Group made up to
31st December, each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are excluded from consolidation from the date
that control ceases. The results of the subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of the disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.2

Basis of consolidation and business combination
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as
an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities
were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.
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33 MELH 3.3 Subsidiaries
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Subsidiaries are investees over which the Group
is able to exercise control. The Group controls
investees if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investees, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investees and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change
in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
any impairment loss (Note 3.9) unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor joint arrangements. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but
not control or joint control over those policies.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.4

Associates (continued)

In consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associates recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of
the investments and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investments. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the
investments. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s
share of the associates’ profit or loss in the period
in which the investments are acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group's interests in
the associates are carried at cost and adjusted for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the associates’ net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The profit or loss for the period
includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investments in
associates recognised for the year.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

34

Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associates are reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where
the associates use accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associates’
accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associates’ financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in associates
equals or exceeds its interests in the associates, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associates. For this
purpose, the Group's interests in the associates are
the carrying amount of the investments under the
equity method together with the Group's long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group'’s
net investments in the associates.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investments in its associates. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is
any objective evidence that the investments in
associates are impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) of the associates and their
carrying amounts. In determining the value in use
of the investment, the Group estimates its share
of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows expected to be generated by the associates,
including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associates and the proceeds on ultimate
disposal of the investments.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

315

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from
the Group's presentation currency, have been
converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates, or at average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018)

0]

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

- Financial assets at fair value (either
through other comprehensive
income or through profit or loss);
and

- Financial assets at amortised cost.

The classification is generally based on two
criteria:

- the business model under which
the financial asset is managed; and

- the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised on a
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at
FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)

Measurement (continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the financial asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within
a business model whose objective is
to hold the financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. BERSHBEBMEE) 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
36a ERMIBE(BE=ZE—N\E—AF—HEEANE: 3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies
BUR) (&) applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)
() MBEEE) (i) Financial assets (continued)
AE(E) Measurement (continued)
EETAE) Debt instruments (continued)
— BRAVEFARMBEERE N Yeld
BEVBEEEMEBKER S ERE Financial assets that are held within a
ABHBRERMHENKEE BF business model whose objective is to be
B EENSNIEREBHRNIET achieved by both collecting contractual
HE - AR RARENEEHS cash flows and selling the financial
NRMBESREAFEFTALME assets and the contractual terms of the
HizmstE - FAERMNEESFH financial assets give rise on specified
BFIEMA - B H M REBEAR dates to cash flows that are solely
MERERPER - HtFleE R payments of principal and interest
FEEREMEEIZEIER - REUY on the principal amount outstanding
MR RNEMEEUE Z5TH UL are measured at FVOCI. Interest
N EEE R E 185 o income calculated using the effective

interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive
income are recycled to profit or loss.

— BAVERIAEE - FVPL
WAFE LB K AT RSN T Financial assets that do not meet the
BT A E fib 2 T UL & /9 28 BI /9 B 75 criteria for amortised cost or financial
BEZRATEFABRE - AF assets at FVOC| are measured at FVPL.
B R BRA RSB IB P ER Changes in fair value and interest

income are recognised in profit or loss.
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(continued)
36a SRMIB(BE=-Z—N\E—A—HEEANG 3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies
BUR) (&) applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)
(i) MIEEEE) (i) Financial assets (continued)
AE(E) Measurement (continued)
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Equity investments at FVPL are
subsequently measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value, dividend income
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

FvOCI

For equity investment which is not
held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI,
they are subsequently measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained profits. It is
not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividend income is recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. Equity
instruments at FVOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the ECLs associated
with its financial assets carried at amortised
cost (including other receivables and cash
and bank balances) and debt investments
measured at FVOCI on a forward looking
basis.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses which are measured at the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive) over the expected life
of the financial instrument. The maximum
period to consider when measuring ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over
which the entity is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are measured at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in the
financial assets’ credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the amount of
ECLs is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. Loss allowances
for financial assets measured at amortised
cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt investments
at FVOCI, loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value reserve (recycling),
instead of reducing the carrying amount of
the financial assets.
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3. BERSHBEBEE) 3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
36a £RMIA(B-Z-N\F—A-—HEREANSGS 3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies
BR) (&) applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)
(ii) BIBEEREE) (ii) Impairment of financial assets
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(continued)

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

For financial assets at amortised cost and
debt investments at FVOCI, the Group
measures the loss allowance either based
on 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Group's financial assets at amortised
cost are considered to have low credit risk
since there was no recent history of default
of the debtor and it has good settlement
record with the Group.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
in default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For
non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(iii)

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is classified as (i) financial
liabilities at amortised cost; or (i) financial
liabilities at FVPL.

Financial liabilities at FVPL

A financial liability may be designated
irrevocably as at FVPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases;
or

— the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial liabilities, which
is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis to the
Group's key management personnel.

If a financial liability forms part of a
contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire combined contract is
allowed to be designated as at FVPL.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade and other payables and
accrued expenses, amounts due to a
holding company and a fellow subsidiary,
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 3.8.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.
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(continued)

A financial guarantee contract issued
by the Group and not designated as at
FVPL is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance being
ECL prevision in accordance with HKFRS
9; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amount
of income recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 15.

The Group monitors the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract
and recognises a provision when ECLs on
the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the carrying amount of
the guarantees. To determine ECLs, the
Group considers changes in the risk of
default of the specified debtor since the
issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month
ECL is measured unless the risk that the
specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the
specified debtor in accordance with the
terms of the instrument that is guaranteed,
an ECL is estimated based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount
that the Group expects to receive from
the holder of the guarantee, the specified
debtor or any other party. The amount is
then discounted using the current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
3.6a Financial instruments (accounting policies

3.6b

applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when, and only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant

contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017)

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- financial assets at FVPL;
- loans and receivables; and

available-for-sale financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on trade date basis.
When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at FVPL, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6b  Financial assets (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

0]

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit-making. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at FVPL, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the
cash flows or it is clear that separation of
the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at FVPL if the following
criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis;
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6b  Financial assets (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

0]

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

- the assets are part of a group
of financial assets which are
managed and their performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and
information about the group
of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value
gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets.
Dividend and interest income is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies in
Note 3.7 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables
(including other receivables, amount
due from an associate, security deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.6b  Financial assets (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets. The
Group has designated its debt elements of
hybrid financial instruments as available-
for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and
interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve in equity, except
for impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the
reporting date. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that
result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at
each reporting date subsequent to initial
recognition.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
3.6b  Financial assets (accounting policies applied

until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at FVPL are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.6b

Financial assets (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at
the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
3.6b Financial assets (accounting policies applied

until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss
as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in
equity instruments classified as available-
for-sale and stated at fair value are not
recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses
in respect of debt securities are reversed if
the subsequent increase in fair value can
be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversal of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

(©) Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.6b

3.7

Financial assets (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVPL
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly. Where the recovery
of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
of trade receivables is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of an annual period, or
in a subsequent period, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are being
undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use
or sale are complete.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Interests in subsidiaries and associates are subject to
impairment testing.

All non-financial assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

319

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units are charged pro rata to the assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Derivative financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31st December, 2017)

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments
are accounted for as financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are taken directly to profit or
loss for the year.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
3.11  Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.1

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amount of cash, and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks and other financial
institutions, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share capital (net of any
related income tax benefits) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through a defined contribution plan.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group's obligation under this plan is limited to
the fixed percentage contributions payable.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.14

Employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Financial liabilities (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017)

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and accrued expenses, amounts due
to a holding company and a fellow subsidiary and
financial liabilities at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3.8).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives
Derivatives including separated embedded

derivatives are measured at fair value (see Note
3.10).
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
3.15  Financial liabilities (accounting policies applied

until 31st December, 2017) (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL includes financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. Derivatives, including derivatives which
have been separated from their host contracts
are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may
be designated as a financial liability at FVPL,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated at initial
recognition as at FVPL if the following criteria are
met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis;

- the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or

- the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (accounting policies applied
until 31st December, 2017) (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and accrued expenses and amounts due
to a holding company and a fellow subsidiary
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued (accounting policies
applied until 31st December, 2017)

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

3.17 Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).
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mAEF AN ED BEBEE - ARER
BB BV REERFI LD BMREFERA R
FHERREREFEM KRS LM ERRAM
RAE—B-

RNE B IMELERIERE - RIZFHIZ R
FTAREEATEESNARYBERAEAEE
HITEFREARESERBAEAXRNERD AL
ERZFERNERE AKEBEFSRT
AREBE—EREDH  BHTE 250 FH
e

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

3.17

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel
services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Under HKFRS 8, reported segment information
is based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors assess
segment profit or loss using a measure of operating
profit. The measurement policies the Group uses
for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the same
as those used in its HKFRS financial statements.

On adoption of HKFRS 8, based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the
Group's Executive Directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and review of these components’
performance, the Group has identified only
one operating segment, financial instrument
investments. Accordingly, segment disclosures are
not presented.
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4. BRSTHEET R 4.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

fbET R N E TS - YRBBERLR I EME
%;ﬁ@%ﬁéﬁ%&%iﬂ?*ﬁ%ﬂ‘?f%Hééﬁi%%?#i‘ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ)
}% o

AEE gL B R EL A RERR - B miED 2 @5HEE
BREBAZEHNBEBERER - TXFIBEARR
FEER T - EAVBRFENEENABREBEFLEX
HEZ ARG RERR

MBEERAREZAFE

NHEZ BERBBERRIBOERM G RFRBER ZRE - £
REZZEEHZERT RV EHBYERGHEME
E o ARGEXMRAZEBERIL R REEEE
BRPEMRZ AT Z THEELMRR  fhar (B
B FRAE BEMAE - EERLE OREBENE
BAMERL 2280 BEMNES  EEREBRTET
ERMTAZAFESERERED -

W B R B — PR Bt 1N B RRIERLE

AEEEREETREAMNEEFREHMIE AR R —H
B8 N BIFRIRE o LA T KIRA B A R B — R &
RAZEEFERKELESE - ERENRE AEMFIE
HIRIER

HEREBERBA

Ty esHEst RAEERARN - \F—A—H%2H
Ml -

MY TEEERE A IR R A R A ET AR M2
WA ECEE T AT EBHEEEERE 25 E
FAEEEAREBRAREERIA R EETA(ER
EHREAMBEBRE AR 2ERNBREE - 5
SEHEEEBRIMAHARE « BELGETRT 28
2 3073 —Fafit o

BT ERAEEEEEAEARERTRESRERH
B - f5Ian

» EEEERRARE I L

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value is the published price
quotations in an active market. In the absence of such
information, the fair value is determined by an independent
professional valuer. Such valuation is subject to limitations
of the valuation models adopted and the uncertainty in
estimates used by management in the assumptions. Should
the estimates including share prices, deposit rates, spot
rates, risk-free rates, volatility and the relevant parameters
of the valuation model be changed, there would be material
changes in the fair value of certain financial instruments
without quoted prices.

Impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries and an
associate

The Group’s management determines the need to make
allowance for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries
and an associate. This estimate is based on the subsidiaries’
and an associate’s net asset values and operating results.
Management reassesses the allowance at the reporting
date.

Measurement of ECLs

The following accounting estimates and judgements apply
to the period after 1st January, 2018:

The measurement of the ECL allowance for the investment
in financial assets and debt instruments measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use
of complex models and significant assumptions about
future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the
likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring ECLs is further detailed in
Note 30.7.

A number of significant judgements are required in applying
the accounting requirements for measuring ECLs, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit
risk;
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WZEER L RERBERENBARERE TR
ZEBRREFEEHRERRE 2BELEHA -

RIFRTIE 2 EE

EEUBREEAEBRRE - TREBDBIRAE
8 2 HIEE REE RN R B - B2
BAFGEERTATSEEER UANTERTAY
A -

4.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for
the measurement of ECLs;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of
forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/
market and the associated ECLs.

Detailed information about judgements and estimates made
by the Group in the above areas is set out in Note 30.7.

Impairment of interests in associates

The Group’s management assesses impairment of interests
in associates at each reporting date by evaluating conditions
specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of
assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable
amounts of the assets are determined. Value in use
calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions
about future events, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making
these key estimates and judgements, the management takes
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on
market condition existing at the reporting date, appropriate
market and discount rates and what information it can
obtain from the associates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions
entered into by the Group.

Deferred taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of deferred taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the deferred taxes in the period in which such
determination is made.

Determination of active market

HKFRS 13 defines an active market as one in which
transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. The management has
to assess whether the market for the financial instruments
is active or not in order to determine the fair value of the
financial instruments.
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5.

EESCEELON

REBZ TBXEBERALRE M ERAME1RE

BEBIEALER 2 IA28,128,0008 (=T — L4 :
23,756,000/ 70 ) R A EB L EFEEEIRE (HP R IE
RIEEBEMRABANBIEEENITESRTA)ME
FRIA#EEE703,272,0008 T (=& —+E4F : 698,872,000
FETL) e

RENERRERNEBTEEZBZWALT

Interest income from financial assets at FVOCI
BATEFAE M E R HEE 2B A

Interest income from bank deposits

5.

Turnover and Revenue

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Turnover represents revenue of the Group of
HK$28,128,000 (2017: HK$23,756,000) and the gross
proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading investments
which includes equity securities held for trading and
derivative financial instruments held for trading of the
Group of HK$703,272,000 (2017: HK$698,872,000 ).

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised
during the year is as follows:

2018
S

2017
—FT—+tF
HK$’'000
FAT

HK$'000
FTiEx

RITFERFEUA 933
Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets

AL E B T A B 2 B S 14,118
Total interest income derived from financial assets not at FVPL

RE RN AR ABam 2 MG & E 2 L5 S 15,051
Dividend income

A B A

— Listed investments

— FHiRE 8,705
— Unlisted investments

—3ELEmRE _

23,756
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6. Hib(F58), WA FEE 6. Other Net (Loss)/Income

2018
Y SV

HK$°000
TR

Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at FVPL (Note)

109

MIRERRATE

2017
—F—+tF
HK$’'000
FET

RATFEFABRZUBEEREEZ ATEEE) W (M) 173,307

Reversal of impairment loss on interest in an associate

BERN— RS R A2 w2 REEE -

Realised gain on redemption of financial assets at FVOCI

BRI AT ERF AL 2RI 5 E E 2 SR -

Exchange gain, net

(R EyE k] 1,609

Realised gain on redemption of available-for-sale financial assets

B ATt S E E v R 90

Sundry income

FETHILA 883

175,889

Mt . BIERE EMRIEEMZRATEFABZVBEE Note:  Including realised gain of HK$2,268,000 (2017: gain of
ZEBRW SR 7/2,268,0008 (= —+F : Wz HK$129,138,000) and loss of HK$2,502,000 (2017: loss of
7129,138,0007% 7t ) & &5 18 42,502,000 T (== HK$2,343,000) on disposal of listed and unlisted financial
—+5F : 518/2,343,00087T) ° assets at FVPL respectively.

7. Fri8®ia (BR), =l 7. (Loss)/Profit before Income Tax

2018
—E—N\F

HK$°000
TéxT

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
FTSEiR (B518), S8 FIE IR,/ (BIA) T 551 :

Auditor’s remuneration

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FAT

ZEET B2 284

Employee benefit expense (including Directors’ emoluments (Note 12)) (Note 11)

EERRMA(REESEME (Hat12))(HZ11) 4,364

Management fee (Note 27)

ERER(ft27) 19,288

Performance fee (Note 27)

BHER(Hit27) 1,916

Reversal of impairment loss on interest in an associate (Note 14)

BEN—HEE AR 2w 2 REEE (A5 14) -

Bt - TTBRREMSEBERAFZERENAELZ2EERMAX - Note:  Administrative and other operating expenses consist
ERBEARBNER - mainly of employee benefit expense, management fee and

performance fee included above.
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8. FrisPip 8. Income Tax Expense
BE-Z—- )N\F+-A=1+—HIFEIEESENESH No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year
SHEBEREAEBE W E G ERTURF - ended 31st December, 2018 as the Group had no estimated

assessable profits.

HREE—E—+tE+-_A=1t—HItFEARERET No Hong Kong profits tax had been provided for the year
B AR EE T EREEEFN N AERETHE AR ended 31st December, 2017 as certain subsidiaries of the
B IEE R AAE R ER G ERR SN - R st Group had no estimated assessable profits and certain
BEEMESHETHERE - subsidiaries of the Group had sufficient tax losses brought

forward to set off the estimated assessable profits.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
ey B AR R gy @SB YWENT loss at applicable tax rates is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET

(Loss)/profit before income tax
FriSEiRl (E518), 5T 166,672

Tax calculated at the applicable rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

REBHE165%(ZF—+tF - 16.5% )5 HE2HHE 27,501
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

AR S 2 B 2 2,120
Tax effect of non-taxable income

BRRBWAZ RGBT E (8,905)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

RERZ KEARBBERZHBEZE 1,767
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

B SERIRTER 2 R (22,483)
Income tax expense

FRSHR X =
R-ZE—\FE+-A=+—0H ' NEFBGRIHEFEE As at 31st December, 2018, the Group has unused
$849185,995,000/& 7T ( =B — 44 : 49151,671,000/% tax losses of approximately HK$185,995,000 (2017:
IT) A REEREAZEEIE Y AT 2 KR ERTEH approximately HK$151,671,000) available to offset against
B EEEE o RRESETERIR A TR - B gtk future taxable profits of the companies which incurred these
EBBEBERELEHRIBEEE - REBIRITHRBEEN - % losses. Deferred tax assets are not recognised in respect of
EMBEEBIEER - NI INES ARERRELERIES these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
& o stream. These tax losses do not expire under current tax

legislation. There were no material unrecognised deferred
tax liabilities.
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9. BRE 9. Dividend

2018
Y Sy

HK$°000
TRz

Dividend declared
BEEIRRKRE
Interim dividend of Nil (2017: HK$0.05 per share (in lieu of a final dividend)
declared subsequent to the end of the reporting period)

THIRSAE(CE—LF  REEHRRKEIRESMR0.058T(RERABE)) 205,585

Dividend recognised as distribution during the year
FARRD KL
2017 interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend) of HK$0.05 per share (2017: Nil)
T FRBARE (RERRE)ZR0.05BT(ZE—+%F : &) -

EXZCIRERBAHANEE  TEZRREHE-ZT The Board proposes to preserve cash for investment
—N\F+_A=+—RALFEAABEE(ZZT—+tF : activities and does not recommend any dividend (2017:
FH%0.058 7T A £49205,585,0007%87T) ° HK$0.05 per share totaling approximate HK$205,585,000)
for the years ended 31st December, 2018.
WERREERBE T —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE The amount of the interim dividend (in lieu of a final
FHIRE (RERERE) 288 - D2BRR 22— \F dividend) for the year ended 31st December, 2017 declared
ZA+NBABETLERRA111,704,3200%51E - 8K after the end of the reporting period, which has been
2 —tF+A=1+—HERRAE - calculated by reference to 4,111,704,320 ordinary shares in

issue on 19th March, 2018, had not been recognised as a
liability as at 31st December, 2017.

10. AATEEAEEER(EER) EA 10.  (Loss)/Earnings per Share Attributable to the
Owners of the Company

SREAR(ER) B TREAABES AEIGEEL The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
43,567,000 7T (ZF — -t F : /& F 49 166,667,0007%8 on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
T RARFERRATEBEITEBARA111,704,3200 (= of approximately HK$43,567,000 (2017: profit of
T—+5F 1 4,111,704,32000) & - approximately HK$166,667,000) and on the ordinary shares

of the Company in issue during the year of 4,111,704,320
(2017: 4,111,704,320).

HE—T—N\FRZF—tF+-A=+—HLEFE - Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31st
HARAQBW BT LER  WEE_S—N\FR=F December, 2018 and 2017 is the same as the basic (loss)/
—+F+-A=+—BILFEZBREE(HR), &7 earnings per share as the Company had no potential
HENETRER(ER) BT - ordinary shares during the years ended 31st December,

2018 and 2017.

11. EEEIMX(BEEEME) 11.  Employee Benefit Expense (including Directors’
Emoluments)

Salaries, other benefits, incentive fee and directors’ fee

e - HiEh  RekESEHE 4,262
Retirement benefits scheme contributions
RONERETEI R 102

4,364




112

SHK HONG KONG INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Rk M

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

12. EEMERIEERSFMALTEHES 12.  Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals’ Emoluments

121 EEEE 12.1  Directors’ emoluments

ENsSENESEZEHEWT ¢ The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors
were as follows:

Retirement

Salaries benefits

Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits  contributions Total

HeR  RINER
EBAS  RUER HEER 48
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FB7 Fi87 5 5

2018

—E-N\F

Executive Directors

HITEE

Warren Lee Wa Lun (Chairman)
FER(TE)

Mark Wong Tai Chun

BN

Non-Executive Directors

FHITEF
Arthur George Dew
W%

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIPRTEF

Albert Ho

fAl AR

Peter Lee Yip Wah

FEiE

Louie Chun Kit

Bl
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12. EEMERTEBREFMALIMS(E) 12.  Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals’ Emoluments (continued)

121 EEEE(E) 12.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Retirement
Salaries benefits
Directors’ and other scheme Incentive
fees benefits  contributions fee
ek RRET
EEEE H fth 2 A STEIHR =Ze
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FAT FABT
2017
—E—+F
Executive Directors
HITEF
Warren Lee Wa Lun (Chairman)
FER(LE) 20 2,209 102 1,683 4,014
Mark Wong Tai Chun
FX8 20 - - - 20
Non-Executive Directors
FETTEF
Arthur George Dew
IKERE 70 - - - 70
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BT TEFE
Albert Ho
fal R 120 - - - 120
Peter Lee Yip Wah
S 70 - - - 70
Louie Chun Kit
ER0S 70 = - = 70
370 2,209 102 1,683 4,364
BHIE—Z—tF+_A=+—HZREERA Incentive fee for the year ended 31st December,
SEBL—T—+tF+-_A=+—HZMEH 2017 was determined at a percentage of the profit
ARFRE—a Dt mEE ° before income tax of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2017.
RAFERNLET Y LHRFEEHELRAE There was no arrangement under which a Director
MEERME - waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.
ERATHMITES - FRTEFRBETIENT The Executive Directors’, the Non-Executive
EE Mo ZRABREERARARNEMBA Director’s and the Independent Non-Executive
RIE R 2R - Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly

for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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12.

13.

—T—)\E+=-H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2018
EEMERTERSFMA LTS () 12.
122 EHEBRSFMAL

REEAEBEREGERTMATEEREES
(ZZ—+F: 71%)  EfeERMELAS
AR
REEZE-N\FERZT—+tF+-A=T—HILFE
AN AEBEYERAESIGZSTMATZINME - 55
AR IARE B 1% 2 S2E) B B 2 -
KRB ARRE 13.

AEERFEAFEREZNIFZEMBARNFE

FR SETHERESEZFABHEIN T /\F
TZAZT - AZHEARMBRRR ARG Z IR
LI

Profit allocated to

non-controlling interests

BT IFERER ZEF

2018
—EB-N\F
HK$000
T

Charm Force Investment Limited (“Charm Force"”)

BEHRE BB AR ([RBEHRE )

Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals’ Emoluments (continued)

12.2  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included five (2017:

five) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above.

During the years ended 31st December, 2018 and 2017,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
that have material non-controlling interests

The consolidated profit or loss allocated to non-controlling
interests during the year and the accumulated non-
controlling interests in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December, 2018 are as follows:

Accumulated
non-controlling interests
Rt =R R

2018
—E-N\E
HK$°000
FHExT

2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
FHT

2017
—FT—+tF
HK$’'000
TET

5 1,018
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13. RHBARREE) 13.  Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
TRAEBAIFERERNBATNMEERTE » %% The following tables provide summarised financial
AR AEEAREEHEATER - information of subsidiary that have non-controlling interests.

The information is before inter-company eliminations.

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF

HK$'000 HK$°000
FTExT TAT

Current assets

MENEEE 141
Non-current assets

FERBEE 1,564
Current liabilities

mEEE (373)

Revenue

I @N _
Profit/(loss) for the year

REEHM,(FE) (90)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year

AEErEkE(BR)ERE (90)
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13. RHBATREE) 13.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

NTREZBMBRAAN-_Z-NF+T_A=+—HZHF

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December,

15 2018 are as follows:

Place of Place of Particulars of Percentage of issued capital held
Name of Companies incorporation operation issued share capital by the Company Principal activities
N Ryt Enu%  ERORAEE ANAREZERTRARAL IERH
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
2018 2017 2018 2017
BN\ ZFtF ZB-\f T +F
Capital Sharp Investment Limited Hong Kong HongKong  HKS2 divided into 100% - Investment holding
2 ordinary shares
ERREERAA B Bk WETHRIRERKR RARR
CMS Investments Limited Hong Kong HongKong  HK$1 divided into 100% - Investment holding
1 ordinary share
Bh &4 BT BIRERR REER
The Hong Kong Equity Guarantee Hong Kong HongKong  HKS2 divided into 100% - Investment holding
Corporation Limited 2 ordinary shares
B Bk WA RIRERR REER
Long Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HongKong  HKS2 divided into 100% - Investment holding
2 ordinary shares
KAFRRRE B BB WA RIRE AR REmR
Long Set Investments Limited Hong Kong HongKong  HK$2 divided into 100% - Investment holding
2 ordinary shares
PR REERAR Bh i WA RIRERR REER
Charm Force Hong Kong HongKong  HK$18,155,000 divided into - 57%  Investment holding
18,155,000 ordinary shares
BRRE Bk & 18,155,0007L5 & REER
18,155,0008% £

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

EEERAE  FRIEZAATHBANHUALE S A
FEREAEEYEABNEEFEL TBHG - BE
A - FILEHB A TS ERE R BRTE -
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14. REELATER ER—EEEQRRE 14. Interests in Associates/Amount due from an
Associate

2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt

HK$'000 HK$°000
FTExT TAT

Share of net assets

DIEEEFE 4,836

Goodwill

EES 50,852
55,688

Less: Impairment loss

B FERRESIE (52,555)
3,133

Amount due from an associate (Note)

FE U — B & A R FIR (ML) 9,564
12,697

Kt - ER—REEERRZREAEER  2ERARBEN Note:  The amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest
RIEBGREMEE - free and repayable upon resolution of directors of that

associate.
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14. REEQRER R —EBHEATTAE) 14.

2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Interests in Associates/Amount due from an
Associate (continued)

Particulars of the associates, all of which are unlisted,
corporate entities whose shares do not have quoted market
price at 31st December, 2018 are as follows:

WZE-N\F+ZA=+—H FAEMERRR/RIELT
RAIER - ERMIATISMRcTEREEHNT :

Equity interest
attributable to
Particulars of Place of Place of the owners

incorporation operation

Equity interest
held by the Group

issued shares held
BRERTRG
BENRER k-1

Name of associates Principal activities of the Company
ELAAREA
AEEfR kAR ey i
2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-\% ZE-\E T +t%

Rl 32 IREH

Oriental Cashmere 2,000 ordinary shares British Virgin Islands ~Hong Kong Manufacturing and trading 25% 25%
Limited of 1 United States dollar of cashmere products
("USD") each
2,000 £ - EBRARS Bk THEREERES
SREEIXT
Learning Ark Holdings 3,513,600 ordinary shares  British Virgin Islands  People’s Republic Provision of online 21% 12%
Limited ("Learning Ark ") of USD0.0001 each of China, except education services and
Hong Kong consultancy services
(the "PRC")
3,513,600 R ik - EBRARS REARANE . RUESHERER
BIREB0.0001ET Bk HHRE
([+&))
Purple Link Investment ~ HK$5 divided into Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment in properties 25% 25%
Limited 5 ordinary shares
SBREERLA SETLA ASREBR B Bk BEANES

EMERFZHERBEAT=A=+—BRAIKER
ERBEAT -

A EEBENR TSR AR B M FIRE

HE-Z—N\F+-A=1+—HFR ' BRHRE(RE
By —MEZEEZEHRBAR) AREREGRIRE])
17,600,000/ 7T 1 & — Bt & A FlLearning ArkZ & 3f
iz WHZREDZ2EDE - At - AEEBER—
[l & N B i e 2 R EE 18 4915,398,000/8 T ©

All associates have a reporting date of 31st December and
are not individually material associate.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, Charm Force,
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
disposed of its entire interest in an associate, Learning
Ark at a cash consideration of HK$17,600,000 (the
“Consideration”) and the Consideration was fully settled.
Accordingly, the Group reversed the impairment loss on
interest in an associate of approximately HK$15,398,000.
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14.

T— \F+=-A=+—HI5FE For the year ended 31st December, 2018

REE N B R B — BEBE D RRE(E)

FEERIEAME N R 2 ERHBE

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates in the

consolidated financial statements

ERBFEAR E R RNGA M RE ZREER

Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those associates:

REB DG5S R R EE
Loss from continuing operations
FHERE RS 2 B1E

Other comprehensive income
Hih 2 EU e

Total comprehensive expenses

2EERAE

Interests in Associates/Amount due from an
Associate (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET

3,133

(975)

228

(747)

AEEERIFEREESE—BBEAREE - A5E
Rz L N B RS 2 BRE{E 35,964,000 TTENEFE
EE2RERERR o RIERENZI L AR BB AREE
ZEE N FRBAREEZEERIRE 0T

Unrecognised share of loss of an associate

REREIG— B2 A BEE

The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year
REEAMRIEN — Al E R BEE
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of an associate

REHRHER L S R REE

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss
of an associate. The carrying amount of the Group's interest
in the associate of HK$35,964,000 was fully impaired in
a previous financial year. The amounts of unrecognised
share of loss of that associate extracted from the relevant
unaudited management accounts of that associate are as
follows:

2018 2017
—E—N\F

B 3
HK$000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT

(33,974)

RS E R A B HAR B O
R EMhAE

RE BB EMHAR

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or
other commitments relating to its investments in associates.
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15. BRAFEFAHMEZEWZHEEE 15.  Financial Assets at FVOCI

2018 2017
—2-n% —F—tfF

HK$°000 HK$'000
FB FBTT

Non-current
JEMED
Listed debt securities (Note 30.7(b))
EEBES(H7E30.7(06)
— Listed outside Hong Kong
—EBLIN T _
— Listed in Hong Kong
—&ELm _
Unlisted debt securities (Note 30.7(b))
IE EMERE S (Mi£30.7(b) _

Total

plaks) _

ZEFESFZ AN FEDIEME30.7F M2 E - Fair values for these securities have been measured as
described in Note 30.7.

BAFEFARMEEREM IS EEUETTE - Financial assets at FVOC| are denominated in USD.

I EVBEEBAZ Y RERREBRR 2 MEERRE These financial assets are subject to financial risk exposure

in terms of price and currency risks.
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16. BRATFEFAEBZHEEE 16.  Financial Assets at FVPL

2018 2017
—2-NF —FtF

HK$'000 HK$°000
FTExT TAT

Non-current
FERED
Unlisted equity securities (Note 30.7(c))
FEETMRAE S (H75£30.7(c) _

Current
RE
Equity securities held for trading
RBEIEEE ZIREES
— Listed in Hong Kong
—&HEL™ 434,476
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— BB ET 150,258
Market value of listed securities
FhESF A 584,734
584,734
BATVESABRMBEENTIEBHE : Financial assets at FVPL are denominated in the following
currencies:

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FBT TiE7T
HK$
BT 434,476
usD
E 115,505
Malaysian ringgit (“MYR")
BAREEME R ([HE D) 23,587
Japanese yen ("JP¥")
H 6,598
Renminbi (“RMB")
AR -
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD")
e 4,568

584,734
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17.

Z— \F+_—H=+—HIL4E For the year ended 31st December, 2018

BAVESAERMBEE(E)

/IILEjJ aﬁﬁéﬁ/\*aﬁﬁ—rfﬁg E °

ZETAZ A FAEDIEMF30. 7725 E -

x:m

IS E ERAS S RERMESRRZ M ERR -

ETRAER 2 AFETDSERRTISNIRE B 2 #hE

BHEEE -

AHHENEEE

Non-current
FERB
Unlisted equity securities (Note 30.7(b))

Financial Assets at FVPL (continued)

The above current financial assets are classified as held for
trading.

Fair values for these instruments have been measured as
described in Note 30.7.

These financial assets are subject to financial risk exposure
in terms of price and currency risks.

Fair values of the listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the

reporting date in an active market.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

2018 2017
—E-NE

—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT

FE_ETRRAFEFH (H730.7(b)) 106,910
Unlisted equity securities, at cost (Note 30.7(d))
JEETIRARFE S - AR (Ha130.7(d) 61,700
Listed debt securities (Note 30.7(b))
EEBES(H7730.7(b)
— Listed in Hong Kong
—BE LM 40,245
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— BB ET 8,696
217,551
Current
E
Unlisted debt securities (Note 30.7(b))
EETERESF(H7E30.7(b)) 86,564
Total
pickas) 304,115

ZEFBF(BRIBR A Z IEETBRAESIN 2 A FEEE
MI5E30.75F il 2 5T = ©

Fair values for these securities, other than the unlisted equity
securities stated at cost, have been measured as described
in Note 30.7.
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17. OHHEMBEEEE) 17.  Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued)

Al ER B EE TS EEEE - Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

2018 2017
ZB-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
usD
ET 215,779
HK$
BT 86,564
RMB
AR 1,772
304,115
WENBEERERT S RERREERLRZ BMERE - These financial assets are subject to financial risk exposure
in terms of price and currency risks.
18. HttEWRRANFIE 18.  Other Receivables and Prepayment
2018
—B-N\#
HK$'000
THET
Prepayment
TR FRIA _
Other receivables
Hith e R 162

162
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19.

RERREEEY

Cash on hand and at banks and other financial institutions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2018 2017
—s-nE

—T—+F
HK$000 HK$’'000
FHxT FHT

FERARE RIRITREM S B EF R 6,730
Short-term time deposits with a term within 3 months

=18 R A ERE 2 52 BB E Bt R 457,478
Cash and cash equivalents

RERRLEEY 464,208

BENKERY B RAS SENZ RITEEFU TN
BEEHE -

usD
Xt
RMB
AR¥

Bank balances, included in cash and cash equivalents of the
Group, are denominated in the following foreign currencies:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—+tF
HK$000 HK$’'000
T FAT
120,269

9

20.

B RAMENRRESER

Trade payables
CE ) ANEN
Other payables and accrued expenses

Hib AR AT B

Trade and Other Payables and Accrued Expenses

2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
HK$’000

HK$°000
FTHET THET

9,715

9,715

2HeBELEY  ARAKERAARZE S R EAME
N EERER 2 REEEAFERE

BIRNRR/BEFXZENTR - EHRNRZEER
AR5 B EBEMERSA -

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s and the Company'’s trade and other payables
and accrued expenses are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Trade payables represents payables for trading securities.
The credit term of the trade payables is trade date plus two
business days.
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200 EBEFRHMEASRRESERE) 20. Trade and Other Payables and Accrued Expenses
(continued)
UTNEZSEMAZNREBAESEEE Bt E MRS The following is an ageing analysis of the trade payables,
SHT based on the date of contract note, at the reporting date:

2018 2017
—2-NF —Etf

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Within one year

2. R—HERRMEQE —BEZERATRE 21.  Amounts due to a Fellow Subsidiary/a Holding
Company
R—HERRMBAT R—HZERABDFERELR 2 The amounts due to a fellow subsidiary and a holding
B RBRERGEE - company were unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
22. BEAVESARZMEAE 22.  Finandial Liabilities at FVPL

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT

Derivative financial instruments

THEEETA

— Call options embedded in bonds and notes (Note 30.7(b))

—BABEFMRIE FIIREEE A (M:730.7(b) 4,921
BATEFAERMBEENTIEEHE Financial liabilities at FVPL are denominated in the following

currencies:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET BT
usD
EW 236
HK$
BT 4,685
4,921
LT ES AR EES - 2SR THEFER The above financial instruments are classified as held for
5 2 B S R b o trading. These financial instruments were subject to financial

risk exposure in terms of price risk.
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23. B 23.  Share Capital
SERAT Group and Company

2018
—EB-N\F

2017
—T—+tF
Number of Number of
HK$'000

THET

HK$'000
TAT

shares
& € E

shares

58 E

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
EE - BBITRER
At 1st January and 31st December
R—A—BR+ZA=+—8H

4,111,704,320 918,978

24.

L
%W
AR GERERERAE ERBRTE 2 2DER

REFEMBRRESSAEFSAAZRARAEHRE
5I) e

BERYARE
REBHEZ GRAGI FOEMR - ANEREEBE R B FIES—
RPBEERHBNENCBREXIIRHIER 2 HRE
REBMREE

A B RIEEA TES AL 2 TR EER
A S AR AT ERD -

24,

Reserves

Group

The amount of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 53 to
54 of the consolidated financial statements.

Capital contribution reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
a portion of the profits of a PRC entity controlled by the
Group's associate has been transferred to reserve funds
which are restricted in use.

Investment revaluation reserve
Investment revaluation reserve represents changes in fair

value of financial assets at FVOCI and available-for-sale
financial assets.
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W (E)

al

AT

At 1st January, 2017

24,

Reserves (continued)

Company

Dividend
reserve

BREfRE

Retained
earnings
REZEF
HK$'000
FHTT

Total
st
HK$'000
AT

HK$°000
THET

—E—+F-A-AKE 201,057 - 201,057
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
RNEERF M2 B2 173,175 - 173,175
Interim dividend declared (Note 9)
BIRA BN S (H3E9) (205,585) 205,585 -
At 31st December, 2017 and 1st January, 2018
RZB—tF+A=+—HEK

—E-N\F-A—-B&EEHE 168,647 205,585 374,232

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
NEEE T o 2 W A R

Interim dividend paid (Note 9)

B ER B (H779)

At 31st December, 2018
RZZ-N\F+-A=+—B#E

25.

R-ZE—NF+_F=1+—0  AQFATEIIRFER
AEA A ZFEELA170,203,0008 T ( —ZE—+4F - {RE
BRI MRS B 15374,232,00058 1) IIRB BRI 27 -

RRBRFEAABLEEBREERE

BREEFEDNREALRBEE ARGREEETE
#91,090,613,0007 7T (= —+ 4 : 491,342,459,000
BTN -_ZE—N\E+-_A=1+—H2ZD%ETEER
4,111,704,3200% (== —+t4F : 4,111,704,3200):1 & -

25,

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
owners of the Company as at 31st December, 2018 are
represented by retained earnings of HK$170,203,000
(2017: retained earnings and dividend reserve totalling of
HK$374,232,000).

Net Asset Value per Share Attributable to the
Owners of the Company

The calculation of the net asset value per share is based on
the consolidated net assets attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$1,090,613,000 (2017:
approximately HK$1,342,459,000) and 4,111,704,320
(2017: 4,111,704,320) ordinary shares in issue as at 31st
December, 2018.
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26. HIBEREH

R-E-N\EFE+-A=1+—0  ARAA—HLaEE
e —EHER - AME—E2EH B A RERESETE
i840,000,00078 7T (—Z—+4 : 40,000,000/ 7T) Z &
B N N\FR-_E—+F+-_A=+—8 ZH
BRRWESHARE -

27. HEEBEALZRES

BRAMEHMREMIBOAREN  ARERBE—T
—N\FE+-A=t+—HIETZEARBREALZR
5 (RELETRA - Ep Tidi(a) IMEKA TR ENTE
B Zimb) R (QEBRER R 2EX )T

Yu Ming Investment Management Limited (“YMIM")
BHREERERAR([REREER])
Management fee
ERER
Performance fee

BHIER

26.

27.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

As at 31st December, 2018, the Company has executed a
guarantee to a financial institution to secure the facilities
available to a wholly-owned subsidiary in the amount not
exceeding HK$40.0 million (2017: HK$40.0 million). No
facilities were utilised by the subsidiary as at 31st December,
2018 and 2017.

Related Party Transactions

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, significant related party transactions entered
into by the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2018,
of which (a) below also constitutes discloseable continuing
connected transactions while (b) and (c) both constitute
exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
were:

(a)

2018
—B-NF

2017
—ZT—+F
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
THERT

19,288

1,916

RIE-—RF+—A=Z+H A2FHEBHE
BEEEF N OREEEHA(IREERER
FD TR ZE—RF+-_A-TNBEEY
ARt - BIBRETER S SRIRETIE
RAEBNEEERTAEECHEERE AKX
AT R"F—F—HE-_T—N\F+=A
=1+ —H - BREEEENZEHESENARE
AARBEEAZAEBGABEEFEIS% ZF
EEE(N2EFFTNZEBEAZE —BZRE
RARBEAZEERZASBEGEEETFE
ZFHEEHENNETRRESMN) 0 KASRN
BE+ A=+t BUESFrBRBEARESE
AZREBLEBEZEGEEFEBL AR AR
ERREEEZERYVEBACSREMBEESF
EHREBARAEE A ZANSBELEZEGSE
BEFEHEI20% 2 BHER -

On 20th November, 2015, an investment
management agreement (the “Investment
Management Agreement”) was entered into by
the Company and YMIM, which was approved by
the independent Shareholders on 29th December,
2015. Under the Investment Management
Agreement, YMIM agreed to assist the Board with
the day-to-day management of the Group from 1st
January, 2016 to 31st December, 2018. YMIM is
entitled to a management fee equal to 1.5% per
annum of the consolidated net asset value of the
Group attributable to the owners of the Company,
calculated and payable in arrears on a quarterly
basis by reference to the arithmetical average of
the published consolidated net asset value of the
Group attributable to the owners of the Company
on the last day of each calendar month during
each quarter; and a performance fee equal to 20%
of the amount by which the audited consolidated
net asset value of the Group attributable to the
owners of the Company of each year ending 31st
December, exceeds the audited consolidated net
asset value of the Group attributable to the owners
of the Company as at the end of the latest financial
year in which YMIM was entitled to a performance
fee.
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EEREATZRS (&)

(a)

M-_T-hF-A-HBRERRY=FLER
BEEEHHMBRUGRRIEE T FE LR 2
REEEHR((HREEEH A ER-F
—NFAAT-AEBIRRLE - FREE
BRHE2FBEEEREARA - N\FN\A
— A ZAREE o

RZZE—NFE+ZA=+—H8 (\EHREEHE
BRAARZBEERARABEEE HAEEE
MEBAR(MAEEIFEET7497%(ZT—+HF
74.97% ) AR ARG ER) 5 (IKERELE RN
ARARMAEEZEARES  R(i)ZERELE
BEANRRBHIGEEBE  KAES -

AEERBRER M EMHERKBIREEBEHEG
BARAEEEERDZHRAERRERST - £F
[EREH{E BRI BB Y 2 £ 549999,0007%5
TT(ZF—+4F : #)917,000%7T) °

FR - BAEBBERTIEERERESE
RARTEEFEARHWEFHEcER(ZE—+
£ 4912,000/&7T) ©

RZTE—-NE+-A=+—8  REWBAF
FTE1T 2 2R (D EARAFEF AL M EZAEK
DU BEERPER EMEFES) ZREFE
#7/530,623,0008 (D E AR HEEHBHBE
ER_ZT—+F+-A=+—H : 31,613,000
BIL) c FANERRZZHR ZHEF 8 WA
1,490,000/8 7T (= ZF—+H4F : 1,482,000/87T) °

AEETRENBEREEINE - TBE
BB 2 e BRI E12 -

27.

Related Party Transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

A new investment management agreement (the
“New Investment Management Agreement”) for
three years effective from 1st January, 2019, with
similar terms set out in the Investment Management
Agreement but new annual caps, was approved by
the independent Shareholders on 12th September,
2018. Details of the New Investment Management
Agreement are set out in the related circular of the
Company dated 24th August, 2018.

As at 31st December, 2018, (i) YMIM was an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of AGL which was
the ultimate holding Company of the Company
holding 74.97% (2017: 74.97%) interests in the
shares of the Company; (ii) Mr. Arthur George
Dew was common director of the Company and
AGL; and (iii) Mr. Warren Lee Wa Lun was common
director of the Company and YMIM.

The Group reimbursed YMIM in respect of
occupying office space and sharing office and
equipment expenses in accordance with the
management agreement. The reimbursement
for the year payable to YMIM was approximately
HK$999,000 (2017: approximately HK$917,000).

During the year, no commission expenses were
charged by Sun Hung Kai Investment Services
Limited, an associate of AGL, for securities
transactions entered into (2017: approximately
HK$12,000) .

The net carrying value of the notes issued by a
fellow subsidiary, classified as financial assets
at FVOCI and included in listed debt securities,
as at 31st December, 2018 was approximately
HK$30,623,000 (classified as available-for-
sale financial assets as at 31st December, 2017:
HK$31,613,000). Interest income from the note,
totalling of HK$1,490,000 (2017: HK$1,482,000)
was recognised during the year.

Key management personnel of the Group are
members of the Board. Details of key management
personnel emoluments are set out in Note 12.
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28. ZARRQTHBMRRR

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

2018
—E-N\F

HK$’000
TiEx

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEERAE

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries

RIBRRIRE

Current assets

RBEE

Other receivables and prepayment
Hfth JlE Wik S TR - 7R IE

Amounts due from subsidiaries

FEURHT B A RIFRIE 1,295,105

Cash and cash equivalents

Re MRS EEY 8,342
1,303,447

Current liabilities

REIAE

Other payables and accrued expenses

H R % fEE 2 A 2,344

Amounts due to subsidiaries

KM A RIFRIA 90

Amount due to a holding company

R—EHER A RIFIE 341

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

R —HRZRM B R FFHIE 7,462

10,237

Net current assets

REEEFE 1,293,210

Total assets less current liabilities

EEABRRBEE 1,293,210

EQUITY

Em

Share capital

R A 23 918,978

Reserves

1] 24 374,232

Total equity

A 1,293,210

AR BMNEREETERN T AF=A_FTA#K
ERFETIEY B TIEEARES

Warren Lee Wa Lun

FEM

Chairman

TE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 20th
March, 2019 and is signed on its behalf by:

Mark Wong Tai Chun
EPN |
Director

BZE
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29. TARERE 29. Top Ten Investments
REBA-ZE—N\E+ - A=+—BHSERENIRR Particulars of top ten investments of the Group as at 31st
EMEBTREEZFBNAT December, 2018, in terms of carrying value of the respective

investments, are set out as follows:

Percentage of
the Group's
net assets
attributable to
Carrying Market value/ Dividend the owners of
Number of Effective book cost up to fair value as at received/  the Company as at
shares held by shareholding 31st December, 31st December, receivable 31st December,  Classification
Name of investment the Group interest 2018 2018 during the year 218 of financial assets
it St
tZA=t-A
BE3-NE O  0aEEA
558 T2A=1-A tZA=t1-8 EREk/  EEAREFEE
Fiisz R LREHE Lt/ AYE FURE MEAY  BREEER
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T4 T T
i) CSOP Hang Seng Index Daily (-1x) FVRL
Inverse Product (*CSOP")
BAREBEREEERA () RATEA B
En([ErRsl)
(i) Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited FVRL
("Grand Ming")
[FREEERERAR (5] BATEABE
fii)  Cheergain Group Limited 2021 Bond Fvocl
Cheergain Group Limited 202185 BATEALL RS
(i) Sub-participation in Kovan Limited ("Kovan") FupL
Kovan Limited Z F B2 (Kovan ) EONEERINCE
(¥} China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited FVRL
("China Unicom”)
PERRBLEE B RHERAT ROTEABS
(TERE])
(v)  CVC Capital Partners Asia IV FVRL
Associate LP. ("CVC) BRATEARS
(vil)  ASM Term Trust 1 (" ASM") FVRL
BATEABS
(vii)  Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) 2021 Bond vod
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) 202185 BOFEAEG R NG
(i) Dream International Limited FVRL
("Dream Intemational’)
EHERARAR ([EHER]) BATEIABS
() Springs China Opportunities FVRL

Feeder Fund (*Springs China’) RATENABR




132

SHK HONG KONG INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Rk M

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

29. TARREE) 29. Top Ten Investments (continued)
Percentage of
the Group's
net assets
attributable to
Carrying Market value/ Dividend the owners of
Number of Effective hook cost up to fair value as at received/ ~the Company as at
shares held by shareholding 31st December, 31st December, receivable 315t December,  Classification
Name of investment the Group interest 2017 017 during the year 217 of financial assets
N-R-tF
tZA=t-A
HECE-tE H=B-t% EARIEEA
A5 tZA=t1-8 t2A=1-A Enel/  BEREEFEE
FiiszRBER LRERA i/ AV FURS WESl  EEEEER
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
47 THi 47
(i Grand Ming FVRL
5 BATET AR
(i) Chief Key 2018 Bond AFS (Note 1) /0EB (Note 2)
Chief Key 2018 MRSzt =) om(AiE =)
(i) China Oriental Group Company Limited FUPL
HERHEEARERLA BATET AR
(i) Alioaba Group Holding Limited FVRL
MECEEEARERAT RATEAER
(v} Alphabet Inc. FVRL
BATEIARS
(v} CLP Holdings Limited FUpL
hEERERAT BATEI RS
(vi)) - Huaneng Renewables Corporation FVRL
Limited - H Shares
ETRRAERAT -HR BATE RS
(viil) Universal Medical Financial & Technical FVRL
Advisory Senvices Company Limited
BRERCHERALA BRATET AR
RHAERAT
(i) Springs China AFS (Note 1)
NS =)
() Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) 2021 Bond AFS (Note 1) /OEB (Note 2)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BV) 202155 AFS(HE—IoR A=)
Kfat— :  AFS - AIfEHE Note 1: AFS — Available-for-sale
Htiz—= : OEB - RABHEREE 2 HESHE AR AT ETA Note 2: OEB - The options embedded in bonds and notes are

BmsVBaRE classified as financial liabilities at FVPL
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TARE(E)

0]

(i)

FAARHE

MARENRBRBRLBREMER  REUR
BB ER LT (BRR : 07300) - 77
REZNPERERNER  EERERNES
BHERZHARAR LMNELRBBES
#J e

BUE—Z-N\FARA=ZTBLAMEA  BFH
RERBUFHAABREREEZREGRER
58,800,000 7T - R=E—/\FA=+H
MARREBUFAABREREERRGFEE
£$2,023,400,000/7T ©

EL

ERRASHESEMMKYL - EROHREBER
PRER ET (BOARIE - 01271) < EEARENE
RAEBNEETRE MEHEREER -

BE-Z—N\FALA=1THINEAR - £
B AEAEREEZERE %M /51,300,000 %
T BREARAEFE0.07ET c RZT—/\F
NAZ=Z+8 EREAEARGREEZGREE
%5 /52,785,700,000/8 7T °

29.

Top Ten Investments (continued)

0]

(if)

Csop

CSOP was an umbrella unit trust established under
Hong Kong and its units are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock
code: 07300). CSOP is a futures-based product
which invests directly in futures contracts on the
Hang Seng Index listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong.

For the six months ended 30th June, 2018, the
unaudited consolidated income attributable to
unitholders of CSOP was HK$58.8 million. As at
30th June, 2018, its unaudited consolidated net
assets attributable to unitholders of CSOP was
HK$2,023.4 million.

Grand Ming

Grand Ming was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 01271).
Grand Ming and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the business of building construction,
property leasing and property development.

For the six months ended 30th September, 2018,
the unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Grand Ming was HK$51.3 million with
basic earnings per share of HK$0.07. As at 30th
September, 2018, its unaudited consolidated
equity attributable to owners of Grand Ming was
HK$2,785.7 million.
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HE-Z

29.

—N\FE+=A=+—H 14 For the year ended 31st December, 2018

TARRE(E)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Cheergain Group Limited ([ Cheergain |)

Cheergain R EBRE ZESEMAI - China
Properties Group Limited ([ China Properties |)2
2&HE/AA ° China PropertiesiA B S B &
Az - RN EABERETER LW (R
%% : 01838) ° China Properties M EKB AT
EUEFEREMHEBRRRMEREET -

BIE—Z—N\F"A=1+HI1XMEA - China
Properties#i 8 AEML R EBZG A B A
277,800,000 A R ¥ - §RE KRBT £0.15
AR -RZ—ZZFE—NFXA=Z+H " China
Properties#E B AJE(h R EEZGEERE A
37,467,400,000 A ¥ o

Kovan

KovanFﬁi%Fﬁﬁﬁ EsIMAST - Kovan K& E M
BAREEHRELEFE RS -

HhERE

hEEEN BB MK - ERONEERRZ
PRER LT (BRI - 00762) o R E K H
MEARIRAETEREHREBEST AR RAHME
BEIERY - BB EBERARY - Hiig
ER - ik - AT BERAERYE - RHE
BEEmM °

Brr—Z-NE+-_A=+—BIHHEKE
B hEBBEREE ARBEECEZES ST
74 10,197,000,000 A R ¥ - SR E XA F
BOBARKE RZZE—N\FF+=_A=+—
H #EBBESABLHECEZGEERSR
313,922,000,000 A R # o

29.

Top Ten Investments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Cheergain Group Limited (“Cheergain”)

Cheergain was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, which is wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Properties Group Limited (“China Properties”).
China Properties was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code:
01838). China Properties and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development and
property investment in the PRC.

For the six months ended 30th June, 2018, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of China Properties was RMB277.8 million
with basic earnings per share of RMB0.15. As at
30th June, 2018, its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to owners of China Properties was
RMB37,467.4 million.

Kovan

Kovan was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
Kovan and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
participating in financial activities.

China Unicom

China Unicom was incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 00762).
China Unicom and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of voice usage, broadband
and mobile data services, data and other internet
application services, other value-added services,
leased lines and associated services and sales of
telecommunications products in the PRC.

For the financial year ended 31st December, 2018,
the audited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of China Unicom was RMB10,197.0 million
with basic earnings per share of RMB0.33. As at
31st December, 2018, its audited consolidated
equity attributable to owners of China Unicom was
RMB313,922.0 million.
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TARE(E)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Ccvc

CVCRERBSEMABREEER - CVCEE
REBAMEABRAEZEFRE -

Br—Z—+&+-_A=+—B LMK
B CVC BERETABABELCEZZT A
3,000,000 - NZEBE—+FE+-_A=+—
H CVCARETABABGLEEZEEFE
%26,600,000% 7T °

ASM

ASMRRHESEEEMARRE AR - ASMEER
EREMTNEREERES B EEHH
TEA  mJERES  AMEBHESH M
LHRARIMEKTIEA -

HIF—ZEZ—+E&+-_A=+—HEE I -
ASM FIEEZERHIFE ARGIEEZEBES
2,300,000 - NZBE—+FE+-_A=+—
H - ASMA]ERZHEHBHFE ARGLEEZE
E$1E/420,000,0003 7T °

Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited([ SHK
BVI])

SHK BVIREBE L ST MAT - FEES
RAR(FRENZZ2EMBAR - FIBER
AN - ERGREBB A ER LT
(MR HRER © 00086) » FBEA—KEITRAH
EHE AR E RS B o

BE_Z—N\FNA=1THIL/NEA @ F1BE
B NEEREEZERE /7 F]741,058,000,000
B BREAREFA0498T - R=ZZT—N
FRA=TH @ FBEREE ARGREEZET
4 HE254520,036,300,000/8 7T °

29.

Top Ten Investments (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

CcvC

CVC is registered as a limited partnership in Jersey.
CVC focuses on Asia Pacific region private equity
investing.

For the financial year ended 31st December, 2017,
the audited profit attributable to limited partners
of CVC was USD3.0 million. As at 31st December,
2017, its audited net asset value attributable to
limited partners of CVC was USD26.6 million.

ASM

ASM is registered as a exempted Company in
Cayman Islands. ASM focuses on investment in
bonds, loans, credit related instruments, convertible
bonds, other debt securities or money instruments
of listed or unlisted companies in selected Asian
countries.

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
audited loss attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares of ASM was USD2.3 million. As
at 31st December, 2017, its audited net asset value
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares of ASM was USD20.0 million.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited (“SHK BVI")

SHK BVI was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“Sun Hung Kai”). Sun
Hung Kai was incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 00086). Sun
Hung Kai is an investment and financial firm with a
focus on Greater China.

For the six months ended 30th June, 2018, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Sun Hung Kai was HK$1,058.0 million
with basic earnings per share of HK$0.49. As
at 30th June, 2018, its unaudited consolidated
equity attributable to owners of Sun Hung Kai was
HK$20,036.3 million.
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TARRE(E)

(ix)

(x)

ERE R

BMBERNEBEMAL - ERONBBBR
FTEMR ETR (RS - 01126) o BARBIFR R H
MERAREIBERT  BR  HENHEE
BIA - BRFIREEMGRITA -

BIE—ZE—-N\FEXA=ZTHIEANER - EHE
BB ANEID R EE %A 7 5 583,700,000
BT BREAREFNA012BT - R-ZT—N
FRA=TH - EHEEES ARLREEZ
4RARERA1,767,200,00058 7T ©

Springs China

Springs China 2B S5 - Springs
Chinax ZRENPEIRES AT REIN
EmzHRERR -

BIE—Z—tF+_A=1+—RALYBBREFE
Springs Chinaf] & Bl A] 2 BB S iF B AFE(GAE
EABEER 1,700,000 T - R =T —+
F4+—F=+—H8 - Springs Chinar] f& @] 7] £ £
BERBEB ARG EERZFEER351,100,000
ETT e

29.

Top Ten Investments (continued)

(ix)

(x)

Dream International

Dream International was incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code:
01126). Dream International and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, development,
manufacture and sale of plush stuffed toys, plastic
figures and ride-on toys.

For the six months ended 30th June, 2018, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Dream International was HK$83.7 million
with basic earnings per share of HK$0.12. As at
30th June, 2018, its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to owners of Dream International was
HK$1,767.2 million.

Springs China

Springs China was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The Springs China principally invests in
companies primarily listed in Mainland China
and Hong Kong and in overseas listed Chinese
companies.

For the financial year ended 31st December, 2017,
the audited increase in net assets attributable to
holders of participating redeemable preference
shares of Springs China was USD91.7 million. As
at 31st December, 2017, its audited net assets
attributable to holders of participating redeemable
preference shares of Springs China was USD351.1
million.
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BREREER A VETE

AEEREABERTRREZPTERSR T A A
ZBBRER - MBRREFETSRAR(BEEERR -
MERRBREEMERRR)  FEEBREABESRR

MBEREETIBAEAEBRAN RS  LENRERS
ETAF - BRZVBRRERE R RETRNREAEE
RHERHZ R SR - M ESRETSRRRER
1K o EARZEBKFER - BRIV EREAELR
AEER o

30.

Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board
periodically. The overall objectives in managing financial
risks focus on securing the Group’s short-to-medium-term
cash flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.
Long-term financial investments are managed to generate
lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.



138

SHK HONG KONG INDUSTRIES LIMITED 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Rk M

HE—ZT— \F+_-A=1—HI-4Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

30. HERREERAFEIE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.1 BIEEREEER 30.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
BIEARR R AR 25 2 BEEES LA THEE The carrying amounts presented in the statements
EXaEER of financial position relate to the following

categories of financial assets and liabilities:

2018 2017
—B-NF —EFF

HK$°000 HK$'000
T8 T

Financial assets

HMEEE

Non-current assets

FEMBEE

Financial assets at FVOCI

BRAVPESARMERRGETEEE -
Financial assets at FVPL

BATEGAERMBEAE -

Available-for-sale financial assets

AHEEMBEE 217,551
Loans and receivables:
B R EWGRIE
— Amount due from an associate
— FEl— @ R RIFOE 9,564
227,115

Current assets
mEVEE
Available-for-sale financial assets
A E R EE 86,564
Financial assets at FVPL
RATES ARG EE 584,734
Loans and receivables:
ER R ERFIA
— Other receivables
— EA FE R 162
— Cash and cash equivalents
-RekReEEY 464,208

1,135,668

1,362,783
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30. HEERREERAFEITE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.1 BIEEREEERE) 30.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

2018 2017
—B-N\F —FtF

HK$'000 HK$°000
FTExT TAT

Financial liabilities

MEEE

Current liabilities

PoEUN=NE

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
B B E DA SHACRGT 2

— Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

—R—TER R B A FRRIEA 7,462
— Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
— B REMENRLENER 9,715
— Amount due to a holding company
— R —fEERR A R IR 341
Financial liabilities at FVPL
BRATEFAERPBEE 4,921

22,439
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30 EREERAFEINEE)

30.2

SN B

SNERBRIEERMTAZAFEIRKRESRE
NS IE R BB TN B 2 R o

AEBBRIDORZABTET - BEEXRE
BRIBRAAEERZRE  MZEFRETEN
X ARK B A% HERFRK
(IZREkDEHE ©

ONSSHEZ R EERB ERINERIRE A
BT

Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.2

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates.

Most of the Group's transactions are carried out in
HK$. Exposures to currency exchange rates mainly
arise from the Group’s investments, which are
primarily denominated in USD, RMB, MYR, NTD,
JP¥ and Thai Baht ("THB").

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates,
are as follows:

2018
—EB-N\F
HK$'000

FTEx
MYR usb
L3 E

Financial assets
MISEE
Financial liabilities

MBaE

Short-term exposure

2R

Financial assets
W EE
Financial liabilities

MBAaE

Long-term exposure

REERE
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30. HEERREERAFEITE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.2 SMNERBR(E) 30.2  Foreign currency risk (continued)
SN BE IS EEHEE EIRKNERRBE A Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
BITIAT - (&) liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates,

are as follows: (continued)

2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000

FE7
NTD

Financial assets

BisEE 6,598 23,587 4,568 235,774 - 9
Financial liabilities
gy =Vt - - - (236) - -

Short-term exposure
3 HEL R 6,598 23,587 4,568 235,538 - 9

Financial assets

P EE - - - 215,779 9,411 1,772
Financial liabilities

HBaE - - - - - -
Long-term exposure

REER - - - 215,779 9,411 1,772
TRINLEERREEAEBRBEERRER A The following table indicates the approximate
AR ek BE RHRAREZINE change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained
[ERSIEMEEE  AEBREEN(RRER earnings) and other components of consolidated
) RErE REmE MK D 2 AV EE) - equity in response to reasonably possible changes

in the foreign exchange rates, MYR, NTD, JP¥,
THB and RMB to which the Group has significant
exposure at the reporting date.
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30. HERREERAFEIE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.2 RS (E) 30.2  Foreign currency risk (continued)
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after Effect on (decrease) profit after Effect on
in foreign tax and other in foreign tax and other
exchange retained components exchange retained  components
rates earnings of equity rates earnings of equity
(Note) (Note)
IMBER HH % HirgEs s pE 2= EIDTRES SR
®wi, RIRKRB B o i A AR H AR 5
(md) EFzEE =& Ve B2 e
(Hizt) (H15%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
T8 T8 TET B
MYR
B 3% 708 -
MYR
Bk (3%) (708) -
JP¥
H 2% 132 -
JP¥
H 2%) (132) -
THB
B 2% 188 -
THB
B 7S 2%) (188) -
RMB
ARE 2% - 35
RMB
ARE Q%) = (35)
NTD
e 1% 46 =
NTD
e (1%) (46) =
Bt Note:
EFERFRFRRBAFIE M EERD - AMEE Positive figure represents increase in profit and retained
R T RARE BFR A BB m - earnings or decrease in loss whereas negative figure

represents decrease in profit and retained earnings or
increase in loss as appropriate.
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30. BiRERE

30.2

30.3

BRAVEFEGE)

SN mBR ()
Wit - (&)

RI|ER  AEEMEEIINERR 2 GRE D
Hr T RERSMNETE R BB A 7 LR B R R ) 3
EYREBFRAERSTEMET - RREBEE
BEHIINEEXEHAEEE T - RER RIS
Mz A REE BN - WETERBRER
HEE_Z—LFT A=t HIFEKA

S MA PR BURE DAL ME R -

RARB+ ZEARTZINEER 2 &2 B E IR

HEHAEE R EEN  RERFIRERE
R 53 I B K E -

IR

%ljtﬂ/\/\/ﬁ& QI,E\-Z EFTE&iEi |§

T35 MR B 2 1 3R R B 2

$%l&$ AEBEFREZE N E(RT
ZFRIEME)MEAITSMNELH 2R
%‘E R o

30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.2

30.3

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Note: (continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the reporting date has been
determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the year. The assumed
changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next reporting date.
These are the same method and assumption used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements of the year ended
31st December, 2017.

A reasonable change in foreign exchange rates for
USD in the next twelve months is assessed to result
in immaterial change in the Group’s profit after tax,
retained earnings and other components of equity.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk for changes in market
interest rates through its deposits at floating
interest rates, which are subject to variable interest
rates.
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BBREBREER A FEFR(GE)

30.3

FR@BR(E)

TERIIE EERRE B A # R R B2 TN
ZT'@QET%&@EJJ AEEBEEN (RS
BN 2%

30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.3

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained
earnings) in response to reasonably possible
changes in the interest rates for deposit at variable
interest rates at the reporting date.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Effect on Effect on
Increase/ profit after Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in interest retained in interest retained
rates earnings rates earnings
(Note) (Note)
F= HHE =
#m R AR E #Em,
Om4) BRI zZE R A)
(Hrz) (H15%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt
Deposits
R 0.5% 2,321
Deposits
TR (0.5%) (2,321)
Kt - Note:

EERFET RRERAENRERRD
RIEF R ARE BFR D e8I o -

AmE R

RiER - AEREFEEMNERRZGURED
WrREME BB A D LR RFERE DL
REENERHTEMERE - FIX2REEEH TS
REEBRITMSBERAERAAEMAIELR L
""""" HE) WHEBEHUNXEHAEEET —ER
ERRLHRZ AR RRES NG - WEHE
EBERERRBE_T—tFT_-_A=1+—H
L FEHFEVBHRRABERESTAAERE
I

Positive figure represents increase in profit and retained
earnings or decrease in loss whereas negative figure
represents decrease in profit and retained earnings or
increase in loss as appropriate.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk at the reporting date has been
determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in interest rates taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the year. The assumed changes in
interest rates are considered to be reasonably
possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next
reporting date. These are the same method and
assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
included in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31st December, 2017.
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30, HKEBREERAFETEE) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

304 RERR 30.4 Equity price risk
RN EIEZ"EHE&* RIBE Equity price risk relates to the risk that fair values
SEMIHRESE M HIREE 2 R R or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

RNEBEEHNIEBEEBA 2N E NIZATF The Group is exposed to equity price changes
Bit \BHEMBEE(ZE—+5F : At HER arising from equity investments classified as trading
BEE)EXZRESETER - BERUEE Y securities and financial assets at FVPL (2017:
FEENEBE S (D BRI AT EF BN BKEE available-for-sale financial assets). Other than
(ZZ—+F HEEMKEE))I > FTEZ unquoted securities classified as financial assets at
EREH B LT - FVPL (2017: available-for-sale financial assets) held
for strategic purposes, all of these investments are
listed.
$%IZJ:$&;§EEEE(\\§\}% =8 SN The Group’s listed investments are primarily listed
R REREEBAERSH LT - REAER on the stock exchanges of Hong Kong, Malaysia,
BAREELTRBETESH LEDEIRE - Tokyo, Taiwan and United States. The portfolio

is diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

TRIINHEAERERSFEAAEREEARR 28 The following table indicates the approximate
HAREZEMBAIER e 2E - MoIBAEER%Z change in the Group's profit after tax (and
AR (RRBEF) RMEEEREMEK D 24 retained earnings) and other components of the
o consolidated equity in response to the reasonably

possible changes in the relevant stock market
prices, to which the Group has significant exposure
at the reporting date.
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30. HERREERAFEIE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

304 RERRE) 30.4  Equity price risk (continued)
LHRE Listed securities
AELIMELFMEZAEAEEE  KEER In response to the reasonably possible change in
THBFIBETAETR) ZREGUTRAR the market price of the listed securities, the Group’s

investment in listed securities excluding derivatives
has the following exposures:

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease)  profit after Effect on (decrease) profit after Effect on
in securities’ tax and other in securities’ tax and other
market retained components market retained  components
price earnings of equity earnings of equity

(Note) (Note)
EHEHE HE % HER BEME HEE HitEm
#in/ RBIRRSB Hi k2 - i 1) R AR BB
(Rd) BIAzEE 2 ORd) BFzwZE
(B1aE) (Hiaz)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FH&xT THT THET

Hong Kong market

EARE 5% 18,139 -
Hong Kong market

HEMS (5%) (18,139) -
Malaysia market

R PaEE % 5% 1,179 -
Malaysia market

SR E R % (5%) (1,179) -
US market

EETS 5% 5,775 =
US market

ELehin (5%) (5,775) =
Japan market

ERNBES 5% 330 =
Japan market

HAmIS (5%) (330) =
Taiwan market

=YDk 5% 228 =
Taiwan market

=) bk (5%) (228) =
Krat - Note:

FERFET RREB RGN EERD, AmB SR Positive figure represents increase in profit and retained
Fom A R AR EE B AR D skUE B IS AN earnings or decrease in loss whereas negative figure

represents decrease in profit and retained earnings or
increase in loss as appropriate.
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30. HBEMEERAVESEGE)

30.4

30.5

RERE(E)
LHEs
Wit - (&)

RER  AREMEYRERR 2 SRED
W BERBRETEXEBARRREHES T
DHR M BREE B E TR BFRNER TR
EE - RREBIEEIEEHABRTEHRHA
HEREHEPEEET —REBRIHHZ
BRI B - WEFTARRR AR
EIEAF+Z A=+ B ULFEHEUE
BERAEBRESAAERERR

FERR

EFERRESBRTAZHF I REREMTA
ZIERBETEEL  YEHAKEESSFMEE
Bz mEkE e

AKBYBEIMEAEERBRETMEME—
REUFREM—EFEREZRZEHTF ©
HFREEHEE

o

HRRBDESRNTESRIARZETFHIE
BRYF - EER - BAGRINBEENENE
BE - BEBEERRER -

NEBIRMRTIREER - BEREAAAE
ER BT MZREES - WL ERPRA
MIREBRIN - IR EBEBRESEMS  BEA LR
CEEEETRACHRIALNEEESF  RE
HEBRTNEF ELCHIRIEF B
AN EREEIEAEFENEEITE R R LA
% o OB ARATEFAEMEE WSS
BEZEEEHFEENE  R_Z—N\F+=
A=+—8 ' EEFHZNTFA-KEBB—H
42 BR T {8 /5 102,869,000/8 L (=& —+ F ¢
135,505,000/ 7T ) + EiEEEZESEN12MEA
TEREEBIEC&ETE o

Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.4

30.5

Equity price risk (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Note: (continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to equity price risk at the reporting date has been
determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in the stock market price or other relevant
risk variables taking place at the beginning of
the financial year and held constant throughout
the year. The assumed changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables over the period until the next
reporting date. These are the same method and
assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
included in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31st December, 2017.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics if they
are related entities.

The credit risk for liquid funds and derivative
financial instruments is considered negligible as the
counterparties are reputable financial institutions
with high quality and credit ratings.

The Group adopts conservative investment
strategies. Usually investments are in liquid
securities quoted on recognised stock exchanges,
except where entered into for long-term strategic
purposes. For investment in debt securities, basically
only debt securities with credit ratings of C or above
would be considered. Trading accounts are only
opened with reputable security brokers. The Board
monitors the Group’s overall investment position
and exposures based on the investment report. For
investment in debt securities which are classified
as financial assets at FVOCI, the gross carrying
amounts with crediting rating between A- and
BB- are HK$102,869,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$135,505,000) and the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.



148

SHK HONG KONG INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2018 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B RAR M

HE-Z—\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2018

30. HBEMEERAVEEGE)

30.5

FERRGE)

AEEEEERR ALY BEEMNE
BERMERME  HARFEREIR - A%
BEZEHFHZMBERR  EEELREMR
Z o MHEEGEEXR - EXS N EHENZS

R IR 2 AT E IR - W ERE F A E TR EE
HFIA(INE) - EFERR - HFHZ2RORR
JBIE -

$%E%Fw*ﬁ?§§&2t%W$ LA K
EEMEBRAZEERBRETHEXREM -
Hﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ék%ﬁm ﬁ%lmfﬂ
WEBREEHR 2 ZHRKREN S HER B

ZEHRK  YEEMBAEEEZAEEE
H-wE=RA BE-_Z-N\FE+-_A=+—
BitFE “ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁAﬁwiﬁW

M EEZEEERTIRZBBREBITE
K BT ER D EARAFEFALMBEEK
BRI BEZ BEEBHER %EHﬂTLEEE%%ﬁ o
THBEEBEBRMREZEEEFBETENR
WhEEAEE -

AEBMBEEGEAE R R mERINE
WIEREM -

Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.5

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s management considers that all the
above financial assets that are not impaired for each
of the reporting dates under review are of good
credit quality. The Group assessed the credit quality
of the counterparties by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors.
The Board also regularly reviews the recoverability
of these receivables and follow up the disputes or
amounts overdue, if any. The Directors are of the
opinion that the risk of default by counterparties is
low.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, The Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. The
Directors consider the loss allowance provision for
debt securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI
was not material and no ECLs were recognised on
the debt securities classified as financial assets at
FVOCI during the year ended 31 December 2018.
There is no significant change in the historical
default rates of debt securities based on which the
expected credit loss rate is determined.

None of the Group'’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.
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30. HBEMEERAVESEGE)

30.6

REBE SRR

mEBETRBRY REARERERBITAZNE
EREMBUBEESCEMFABERBEETZR
RERM - AEBEEFERZ REMENRRE
TREABRTEARER S REE BT EALRE
MBETRR - ARBZBER/BIEE 2R
BEEKFRARESRE  NWENEEHR
RHRDESHFE

AEETEEBEREG R EEOER
HEAEEBRSRL  UWERHRDEST
2 - ARERAERERDESHFR  ZEA
EERH=ATRONEHRDESFE

FEEHEFRENRS  ENTHERREE
BHNBNARREZ =T RZRBDESFER
AMEFRBE L CAHREEREMLERY
MBEEZRNRENEHRRDESFE

Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.6

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or other financial assets. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade and
other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group's objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully
monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments
for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash-
outflows due in day-to-day business. Liquidity
needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis. Long-
term liquidity needs for 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash, short-term bank deposits
and marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements for up to 30-day periods. Funding for
long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.
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30. HERREERAFEIE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.6 MEBELEKR(E) 30.6  Liquidity risk (continued)
LT BREBRR —_E—N\ER_ZE—+F Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
T A=+ —BIZHTEMBABRIRBREY contractual maturities for its non-derivative financial
HAPR liabilities as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017.

On demand/
less than 6to 12 1to5 Over
6 months months years 5 years

wER
DR6fEA 6ZE1218A 1255 SFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TR

At 31st December, 2018
RZE-NFE+_A=+—H
Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
B 5 REMERR R EER
Amount due to a holding company
R—EHER A RIFRIE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

R—FERZ KB R EFIR

At 31st December, 2017
RZE—tF+-A=+—H

Other payables and accrued expenses

Hit e R kg B A 9,715 - - -
Amount due to a holding company
R—EHER R RIKIE 341 = - -
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary
R—MER M B A E A 7,462 = = -

17,518 = - -
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30, HKEBREERAFETEE) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)
30.7 AFERE 30.7 Fair value measurements

(a)

DFEFBEAFEIRNUBEER
M¥aE

TREIREAFERE  RBERRK
RHEFENUBEERREZER
HRBREAEHEVHEEREEZ
R EMERNTEE R ARNBL
FiE - BUBEERBEIOR=ZEW
MR AHERBORBATEE :

- £ HREEMABERNLR
MIZHRECRIFAR)

- F_E: BEMREZREMN
SIS ZEEXBBEABEZE
A AR ERE(BINER) s
(AREER) : &

- FZE - BERBBEWIHREA
BEMSHEEIBACGEERER
BN °

RFERBHERY N FEFENSE
BEAZBAZKEER 2o BHYB
BEESABETERSR -

HE-Z-N\FE+-_A=+—HLF
T ATHLETRABLFEHE_ESE
VOB ARE=E RHEEERBWULLA
REMRMZIBERE ZBEIREHRE -
R=FE—N\F+=-_A=+—H ZE&T
IE LT AR B S A BB A82,949,000
BLT(ZE—+tF+=—A=+—H:
106,910,000/ 7T ) © AEE 2 BUR AR
BRE _EHE =G MER BN
IRIE B H HAME R o

(@)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at fair value

The following table presents financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value at the
reporting date in accordance with fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based
on the relative reliability of significant
inputs used in measuring the fair value of
these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based
on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within
which the financial asset or liability is
categorised in its entirety is based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.

During the year ended 31st December,
2018, certain unlisted equity securities
were reclassified from level 2 to level
3 as the management considered that
this should better reflect the underlying
investment portfolio of the investment.
At 31st December, 2018, fair value of
those certain unlisted equity securities was
HK$82,949,000 (at 31st December, 2017:
HK$106,910,000). The Group's policy is to
recognise transfer between level 2 and level
3 as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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30. HERREERAFEIE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.7 AQFEEFHEE) 30.7 Fair value measurements (continued)
(a) BRATEIENUBEERVEAE (a) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(#&) carried at fair value (continued)
RUBAKRKRANEZAFEFEZTHE The financial assets and liabilities measured
ERAGBIEID BT AFELEE at fair value in the statement of financial

position are grouped into the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

2018
—E-N\F

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—E E_fE F=[E B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FERT
Assets
BE

Financial assets at FVOCI
BAFEFARMEERENBEE
— Listed
i)
— Unlisted
—JELm
Financial assets at FVPL
BAFERFABRNBEE

— Listed securities held for trading

—RBEEEBEZ ETH2
— Unlisted
—JELm

Total fair value
NERTE
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30. HEERREERAFEITE(E) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.7 AFEIEE) 30.7 Fair value measurements (continued)
(a) BEAFEIENGKEERVMKAR (a) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(%) carried at fair value (continued)
2017
—E—+F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
] ol =1 E=E BEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHIT FHIT
Assets
BE
Available-for-sale financial assets
AMEHEBEE
— Listed
— kM - 48,941 - 48,941
— Unlisted
—3JELEmm - 193,474 - 193,474

Financial assets at FVPL
BAVEGF ARV BAE
— Listed securities held for trading
—BEEEBEZ LTESH 584,734 - - 584,734

Total fair value
NF(E 425 584,734 242,415 - 827,149

Liabilities
afE
Financial liabilities at FVPL
BRATESABRIGAE
— Call options embedded in bonds and notes

—RABFMREBZ AR E O = 4,921 - 4,921

Total fair value
NSRIER G - 4,921 - 4,921

Net fair value
NTAE RS 584,734 237,494 - 822,228
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300 HKEBREERAVEITEE) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)
30.7 ALFEFEE) 30.7  Fair value measurements (continued)
(a) BRAFEIERNIBEERUKAEE (a) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(%&) carried at fair value (continued)
HE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—HI%=E During the year ended 31st December,
B3I LTMRAMBEERAE= 2018, other than 3 unlisted equity financial
BN Fili30(a)iRiEIE E MR AEHHE assets were classified under level 3 and the
—EBEBEE=EIN  RTEEERER transfer of unlisted equity securities from
ZETEAEMERAER (T —LF : level 2 to level 3 explained under 30(a)
) o above, there were no other significant
transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy (2017: Nil).
AR ERTE 7% RGBT The methods and valuation techniques used
RS BRI R o for the purpose of measuring fair value
are unchanged to the previous reporting
periods.
(b) HERTTRE_EBAFEETEFREMNZ (b) Valuation techniques and inputs used

BWARE
FEETRAE S

RZZE—+F+-_A=+—RHETHE
AR E B TS B B 2 3F LT AR

NERRZ AR EBEE - RIFAM
2 AREREL —EZENED
BAERRERERESENEEFEED
B o JF LA S 2 XA BEEHE
AzREEERHNGEERZEEFE

i -

LR EMERREF A FEDHE
TEEGEMEETEARARBMGE
RATMESE -

in Level 2 fair value measurements

Unlisted equity securities

As at 31st December, 2017, certain unlisted
equity securities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period,
based on the relevant agreements, the
Group can require the relevant investment
manager to redeem the units at net asset
value by giving a written redemption
notice. The fair value of these unlisted
equity securities are determined based
on the net asset value of the fund as at
valuation date provided by the relevant
investment managers.

Fair value of listed and unlisted debt
securities have been determined by a firm
of independent professional valuer, Greater
China Appraisal Limited, using valuation
techniques.
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30, HKEBREERAFETEE) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)
30.7 AFEIEE 30.7 Fair value measurements (continued)

(b)

HERMERE-BAFEFEMRAZ
WA (E)

EWmRIE EMEBES

EBEBEHEERTERZ 7 ERBREN
™

() EHFBEE

BEHEMHRIBERB LA AR
RRBERIESERSE2ATEE
B EVEERERER  EE#%
TEEH RZ-ZZE—NF+=A
=+—8 BEHFBOZAFENE
102,869,000 ;T (= T — £ F
49 /% 135,505,000 76 7T ) * It Ty iR
FrEskz WamRITR 2 RRRE R
ERBEANETZHREMNE 2
K2 WRR L BBEERRBE
FERBZTAETE - R=ZF—N
FE+-_A=1+—8 BFBHZE
BRI R A F3.68% E15.70% (==
—+F N FAE3.19%E6.81%) °

(i PTHETEZMNEE

F74 T ARG IR BRESRATE
HRRHMEEEEREE 2 ATE
B BINERER -

R-ZE—+ER+-_A=+—H H&
FREBEERERZENITET A
LT ZEE  2FEA T Hull-Whitef®
A o ZAER 2 BARE A B EREERN
F0.0020.01 * BABRENT1.08% =
5.20% * MAEHARIREE)1E0.01 -

(b)

Valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 2 fair value measurements
(continued)

Listed and unlisted debt securities

The methods and assumptions applied for
the valuation of the debt securities are as
follows:

(i) Valuation of debt element

The debt element is recognised at
fair value at date of initial recognition
and subsequent measurement with
fair value change at each reporting
date recognised directly in equity
until the instrument is sold. As at
31st December, 2018, the fair value
of the debt element is approximately
HK$102,869,000 (2017: approximately
HK$135,505,000) which was calculated
based on the present value of
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
required yield, which was determined
with reference to instruments of
similar terms and similar credit risks.
The effective interest rates of the debt
element at 31st December, 2018
ranged from 3.68% to 15.70% (2017:
ranged from 3.19% t0 6.81%).

(ii) Valuation of derivative element

The derivative element is recognised
at fair value at initial recognition and
subsequent measurement with fair
value change at each reporting date
recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31st December, 2017, Hull-White
Term Structure Model is used for valuation
of derivative element of certain perpetual
bonds and guaranteed notes. Significant
inputs into the model were mean reverting
rate ranging from 0.00 to 0.01, default
intensity ranging from 1.08% to 5.20%
and short rate volatility of 0.01.
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300 HKEBREERAVEITEE) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)
30.7 AFEIEE) 30.7 Fair value measurements (continued)
(©) HERNMRE=BATFEFEREM> (0 Valuation Techniques and Inputs used

WAHE

FEZBZETHLMRAZ R ZAFE
ERBYEXHEMEETERRAR
RS ERMMEE -

() FEEMBAES

HETFIELTRAZSHZEE 2
FRTMSMHRZME @ BRER
MiHN 7 —EFRETIER - ZRA 2
EATAERHGALBABHEEEE
7 F 5,340,000 3% JT & 15,174,000
EX R ENTF1411% =
78.36% ' MHEBEHEN T-0.0321 %
PFHIER2.57% o

ETHELTRAEBEFARERRZ
AR EEE - RIFEBZHE
7N 2 [ 7 2 — {8 3 T A B (=58 AN
ERMEBARELIEAEEFEREMD
BA o FETRAESF 2 AREE
AR 2 B IR R - REEIA
EHRZEEFEERIFLTERAE
HFZNFEE-

(i) MBL2EKRE

HEESREZHE BREATEE
B FAEMNBIRIRSRE - 28638
REREZEANAERGALE
AL %&2.60% * BERERMNE
13.68% * BFEF|E16.28% * EHL
BEERA7 63% K IRIEZE38.31% ©

in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of certain unlisted equity
securities in level 3, have been determined
by a firm of independent professional
valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited,
using valuation techniques.

(i) Unlisted Equity Securities

Quoted market price, pricing multiple
and black-scholes model are used for
valuation of certain unlisted equity
securities. Significant unobservable
inputs into the model were existing
portfolio value ranging from USD5.34
million to USD15.17 million, volatility
ranging from 14.11% to 78.36%,
return correlation ranging from -0.03
to 1 and discount rate of 2.57%.

Certain unlisted equity securities are
measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Based on the relevant
agreements, the Group can require
the relevant investment manager to
redeem the units at net asset value by
giving a written redemption notice.
The fair values of the unlisted equity
securities are provided by the relevant
investment managers. The Group has
determined that the reported net asset
values represent fair value of these
unlisted equity securities.

(i) Investment in Sub-Participation

Discounted cash flow with credit
exposure adjustment is used for
valuation of investment in sub-
participation. Significant unobservable
inputs into the discounted cash flow
were risk free rate of 2.60%, implied
credit spread of 13.68%, effective
interest rate of 16.28%, probability of
default of 47.63% and recovery rate of
38.31%.
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30. BKEREERAFEIHE(E)

30.7 AFEFEE)

30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)

30.7

(0 HEENRE=ELFETRARMNZ

WA (E)

EEERERABIZRER

R

PR A RGBS =
R eMEEY ATEBEAEARE -

ERERTABRHARE(EIE) R
ARENemTAEZHERNT

Fair value measurements (continued)

(9]

Valuation Techniques and Inputs used
in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
(continued)

The management believes that possible
changes in the input values and business
or economic circumstances would not
cause significant change in fair value of the
financial assets under level 3.

Reconciliation for financial instruments
carried at fair value based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as follows:

2018 2017
S8 e

HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT THET

At 1st January

Transfer from level 2

Transfer from available-for-sale
financial assets

Remeasurement of equity securities
measured at FVPL

Additional securities acquired

Disposal of securities

Net unrealised loss recognised in profit or loss

Wn—H—H

LY A=y
ERIENek=—y: kg
BEEER

B ERAFEFA
B BRARES
HBAR S

HER S

ERETHERBZRERER

At 31st December

Rt=A=+—H
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300 HKEBREERAVEITEE) 30. Financial Risk Management and Fair Value
Measurements (continued)
30.7 AFEFEFE) 30.7 Fair value measurements (continued)
(d) BRERAVIRZHKEE (d) Financial assets carried at cost

TH A HNENBEEERKAGTE
RERNFEELASETE -

R-B—+E+-A=+—0 KK
& A& E ¥ B 7K 30,448,000 % Tt 7]
IR - WEARBIKEE 2 2 ERLAS
REE - KREAFMRECRIEILE
RERE REBEE-_ZT—X~E+_-A
=+ —HIEFE  REAGRAEEMN
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The following available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at cost because their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Investment in Investment A was carried
at cost of HK$30,448,000 as at 31st
December, 2017. Investment A is registered
as a limited partnership in Jersey, Channel
Islands. Investment A focuses on Asia
Pacific region private equity investing. For
the year ended 31st December, 2016,
the audited net surplus from operations
attributable to limited partners of
Investment A was USD0.66 million. As
at 31st December, 2016, its audited net
asset value attributable to limited partners
of Investment A was USD24.2 million and
net assets value attributable to the Group
of Investment A was USD3.8 million. The
fair value of the investment in Investment
A cannot be measured reliably as the
Group can only access to the financial
information as at 31st December, 2017
of the Investment A around 90 days after
31st December, 2017. The Group has no
intention to dispose of Investment A as at
31st December, 2017.

Investment in sub-participation in
Investment B was carried at cost of
HK$31,252,000 Investment B was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
Investment B and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in participating in
provision of financing in Indonesia. For
the year ended 31st December, 2016,
the unaudited gain of investment in sub-
participation attributable to owners of
Investment B was USD4.4 million. As
at 31st December, 2016, its unaudited
net asset value attributable to owners of
Investment B was USD28.1 million and net
asset value attributable to the Group of
Investment B was USD4.9 million. The fair
value of investment in Investment B cannot
be measured reliably as the Group can only
access to the financial information as at
31st December, 2017 of the Investment B
around 90 days after 31st December, 2017.
The Group has no intention to dispose of
Investment B as at 31st December, 2017.
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31.

—F—\F+= A=+—H L4 Z For the year ended 31st December, 2018

BARERE 31.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

2018 2017
—E—N\F

Tt
HK$'000
FAT

HK$°000
FH

Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements

EEAERTLE R EL 2R
— Financial assets

—-WHEE

11,708

32.

EXERE 32.

AEEZERER B RRBRNEEA RN ABELE
EEBERABRREH AR R
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BARGERE - AEBUBERESHEL R SEEEEEEN
s

RERZBEEESLEMT

Capital Management

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to the Shareholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of debt to equity ratio.

The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as follows:

2018 2017
—2-\fF Il
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET Tt
Borrowings
ER _
Total equity
LS 4RER 1,343,477
Debt-to-equity ratio
BB 0:1
33. LHBEF 33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

AEER -_Z-N\F-A—BAVRERAEEVBRE
ERFW - REMAROBET N LBENTES
5l o ERIRREBHFIBERME2.10) °

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1st January,
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.1(b).



160

SHK HONG KONG INDUSTRIES LIMITED

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B F BB E

2018 ANNUAL REPORT

2014
—Z=—F
HK$'000
FHET
Results:
S

Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners
of the Company

NATHEE AEEEF], (EiE) 87,105

Year ended 31st December,
BE+t-A=+—HLFE
2015 2016 2017

—E—RF —T—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T

—E—+F
HK$’'000
FAT

(103,989) (73,565) 166,667

2018
—B-N\fF
HK$'000
FHT

2014

—T—JuF
HK$°000
T

Assets and liabilities:
EEREE:
Current assets
mREBEE
Total assets
BERR
Current liabilities
nREEE
Total liabilities
BERA
Total equity

R iR

1,131,398

1,425,939

49,342

49,342

1,376,597

As at 31st December,
R+=A=+—H
2015 2016 2017
—E—RF —EREF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT

1,072,691 797,272 1,135,668
1,245,691 1,195,111 1,365,916
15,718 39,917 22,439
15,718 39,917 22,439
1,229,973 1,155,194 1,343,477

2018
—B-N\F
HK$'000
FT
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